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REFLECTIONS



The iSimangaliso Wetland Park has been 
home to human life for many thousands of 
years. The methods of fishing, hunting, and 
foraging, of living in harmony with the fresh 
and salt water, the coastline, mountain 
gorges and open bush, of fights for survival 
and long-held beliefs and customs, are all 
held in the whispers and conversations of  
its people. 

Passed down from fathers to sons, mothers 
to daughters, there are a thousand 
verbal time capsules waiting for the next 
generation to prise them open. 
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“What counts in life is not the mere fact that we have lived,
it is what difference we have made to the lives of others 
that will determine the significance of the life we lead.”

“iSimangaliso must be the only place on the globe where
the world’s oldest land mammal (the rhinoceros) and the 
world’s biggest terrestrial mammal (the elephant) share 
an ecosystem with the world’s oldest fish (the coelacanth) 
and the world’s biggest marine mammal (the whale).”

NELSON MANDELA

Fish traps, Kosi Bay
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Hippos, Lake Bhangazi. Opposite: Ephraim Mfeka
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The Eastern Shores section of iSimangaliso, the place of the 
Bhangazi people, is characterised by the tallest forested
dunes in Southern Africa, dramatic grasslands and 
expanses of lakelands.

The idyllic life at Lake Bhangazi, first settled around 1500 
years ago, was a communal life of farming, grazing cattle, 
hunting, and gathering. The men speared fish from the 
freshwater of Lake Bhangazi and harvested the Indian 
Ocean. Men and women gathered fruits and nuts while 
young boys tended the cattle. The land provided for their 
every need.

One day in 1974, without notice, government trucks or 
GGs (Government Garage), as people called them, from 
the Natal Conservation Service (NCS) came. People had 
no time to collect their belongings. One person reported, 
“When we were removed from Bhangazi at gunpoint, we ran 
away leaving most of our belongings behind.”

Ephraim Mfeka was one of the people driven from the 
area. He and his people survived the forced removal by 
the apartheid government from their lands on the Eastern 
Shores to areas far from where they lived.

*Source: Apartheid and the Removal of Black Spots from Lake 

Bhangazi in KwaZulu-Natal, South Africa. Bradley Skelcher.

The Lokothwayo Cattle Dip

The Lokothwayo Cattle Dip, in the southwest corner of Lake 
Bhangazi, was probably built in the 1930s by the colonial 
administration. Such dips were often the only infrastructure 
in the area. 

The dip gets its name from a man called Lokothwayo, who 
resisted removals between 1950 and 1970. Lokothwayo 
stood firm and was one of the last to be removed from his 
home. 

EPHRAIM MFEKA
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The Lokothwayo Cattle Dip
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MESSAGE FROM THE MINISTER OF 
WATER AND ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS
The iSimangaliso Wetland Park Authority was established 
in 2000 as part of Government’s turnaround strategy for 
an area that had been plagued, in the words of former 
president Nelson Mandela, by “poverty amidst plenty”. 

Since its inception 12 years ago, iSimangaliso has created 
40 354 temporary jobs and 1 037 permanent jobs, has 
offered training to some 33 000 people in a wide range of 
skills, from art to hospitality, supported 57 young people 
through university, and provided entrepreneurial and 
financial aid to 174 small businesses. It has also issued the 
first majority black-owned tourism licences for boat cruises 
and fishing charters in South Africa. 

ISimangaliso successfully concluded co-management 
agreements with eight land claims trusts and has a 
revenue-sharing arrangement in terms of which it pays out 
an amount of R800 000 per annum. In recognition of these 
efforts iSimangaliso was awarded the Greening for the 

Future Award in Youth Leadership and Job Creation by the 
Mail and Guardian. 

On the conservation front, iSimangaliso has been 
espoused by UNESCO as a new model for protected area 
management in South Africa. Sixteen disparate parcels 
of land have been consolidated under one management 
system, an amount of R200 million has been invested in 
infrastructure such as roads, water reticulation, fencing, 
day visitor facilities and overnight accommodation. A 
total of 14 000ha of alien timber plantations on both the 
Eastern and Western Shores of Lake St Lucia have been 
felled. Land incorporation agreements expanding the 
conservation estate have been concluded. Wilderness 
areas have been fenced for the first time in the 100-year 
conservation history of the area, and a wide variety of game 
that has been missing from the area for a century has been 
reintroduced. 

These changes effected by the iSimangaliso team, have 
revitalised the tourism industry of the area. The number of 
tourism establishments in the iSimangaliso area has grown 
by 84% since 2000 in response to the consistent growth in 
visitor numbers. These private sector opportunities were 
made possible by the many millions spent on conservation 
in iSimangaliso every year. 

It is with pride that I present this annual report for the 
2013/14 financial year. 

Minister Edna Molewa, MP

Minister of Environmental Affairs

31 July 2014
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MESSAGE FROM 
THE CHAIRMAN

Male bush buck, Lake Bhangazi
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When I read the stories of the people in this annual report, 
I am reminded of an anecdote about a father and his son. 
The father, wanting to keep his son occupied while he 
worked, tore a picture of the world map into small pieces 
and asked his son to put it back together. After a few 
minutes, his son had reassembled the map. The father 
expressed surprise at the speed with which his son had 
accomplished this task. The son responded: “On the 
reverse of the map was a picture of a man. First I fixed the 
man, then I fixed the world.”

This is the philosophy that has underpinned the work of 
my dedicated board members and staff at iSimangaliso. 
We recognise that successful conservation is inclusive. 
The old ideologies that people are not part of the natural 
landscape do not have a place here. We have instituted 
many programmes that demonstrate our commitment to 
the people of this Park. This has already been recognised 
globally by bodies such as UNESCO and the World 
Tourism and Travel Council. 

Undoubtedly, our biggest challenge is balancing the 
competing needs and interests of all our people, while 
enhancing the World Heritage values to which South Africa 
has committed. Conservation cannot succeed without 
community; without the understanding that we share a 
common origin and dignity. We refer to ourselves as the 
rainbow nation and focus on our differences instead of our 

similarities. We fail to recognise that the different bands 
in the rainbow have a common source – light. When we 
understand how inextricably we are linked, we can begin to 
act for the greater good and not from self-interest. Change 
happens one person at a time. 

iSimangaliso invites you to join hands with the women, men 
and children who have shared their stories with you in this 
Annual Report, to build a Park that must continue to serve 
as a global model for conservation and remain a significant 
contributor to the local economy. 

M Msimang

Chairman

31 July 2014
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MESSAGE FROM 
THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I first came to this area as a child, with my father, who had a 
love of wetland ducks. I went on to live here in the late 80s 
and early 90s working for NGOs in the area and became 
involved in anti-apartheid activities. I was deeply invested 
in the area, the Park and its people, and a dream, a vision 
for this Park, had been forming in my mind for many years. 

Little did I know that years later, I would be given the 
opportunity to make that dream a reality. I was appointed 
by the then Minister of Transport, Mac Maharaj, to project 
manage the Lubombo Spatial Development Initiative. Our 
aim was to set up programmes to improve conditions for 
people in the area and in so doing to diminish poverty in 
one of South Africa’s least developed but most beautiful 
regions. This included big interventions: malaria control, 
road infrastructure, more efficient border controls. All this 
centred on one anchor project, the iSimangaliso Wetland 
Park (then known as the Greater St Lucia Wetland Park). 

My team and I worked consistently with the available 
resources. Soon enough, our hard work started to pay off. 
In the last 12 years iSimangaliso has created on average 

some 3 000 temporary jobs each year; quality permanent 
jobs in the fields of access control, hospitality and guiding; 
trained people in tourism, crafts and arts; supported over 
180 small and medium enterprises and assisted over 50 
students to study at university with constant academic 
and social support. The unexpected return has been 
seeing young people empowered with a sense of self-
determination.   

My dream was not confined to social change. It was to 
build on the wins of the St Lucia no-mining campaign and 
to see species that had long been shot out or become 
extinct in the Park, roam the old migratory routes from the 
mountains to the sea across one open ecological area 
as they did in pre-colonial times. Nothing exemplifies this 
more than the introduction of the elephant in 2001, and in 
the last financial year the return of the king of beasts - the 
lion into the uMkhuze section of the Park after a 44-year 
absence. We are at last within reach of the final stage in 
this programme as the last outstanding species – eland – 
will be brought into the Park in the next year. 

As iSimangaliso leads the way in the new era of 
development-led conservation, we can look back on 
a short but busy 12 years in the knowledge that our 
foundations are solid enough to build Africa’s greatest 
conservation-based tourism destination driven by 
community empowerment.

Andrew Zaloumis

Chief Executive Officer

31 July 2014
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Traditional women, Nkani river. Opposite: Jacana
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Bongumusa Joseph Mfeka’s family originated from an area 
on the western banks of Lake St Lucia. He was born there 
in 1938 and spent most of his life there before being forcibly 
removed in 1953 to Mfekayi, which is now his home. He has 
32 children from three wives.

The Western Shores section of iSimangaliso opened for 
public access in December 2013. Formerly under extensive 
gum and pine plantations, it now comprises vast swathes of 
rehabilitated grasslands punctuated by dense patches of 
virgin bush, and is home to elephants, giraffe, buffalo, zebra 
and numerous other species.

The Nkani River

Mfeka tells a story about the Nkani river. “There was this 
river close to home that was called Umphelankani (Nkani) 
where girls met elderly women to have their virginity tested.  
Should somebody be found not to be a virgin, a hiding 
was in order – and in addition they were called not-so-nice 
names”.

BONGUMUSA JOSEPH MFEKA 
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Water lilies, Lake Bhangazi
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GENERAL 
INFORMATION

Legal form of enterprise:

Established by Regulation 1193 of 24 November 2000, under the World Heritage Convention Act 49 of 1999. The 
iSimangaliso Wetland Park Authority is a Schedule 3A Public Entity.

Nature of business:

The iSimangaliso Authority’s business is to conserve the iSimangaliso Wetland Park and to create jobs and benefits for 
communities living in and adjacent to the Park through optimal tourism-based development. iSimangaliso is therefore in the 
business of conservation, local economic development and tourism.

Country of incorporation:

South Africa

 Total Permanent Temporary Contract

Number of staff: 30 29 1 2

Address:

The Dredger Harbour, St Lucia
Private Bag X05, St Lucia 3936
Telephone: +27 (35) 590 1633
Telefax: +27 (35) 590 1602
www.iSimangaliso.com

Seeded grass, Lake Bhangazi
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Musawenkosi Zigizendoda Mdluli. Opposite: Fish preparation



MUSAWENKOSI 
ZIGIZENDODA MDLULI  
uZigizendoda igama lami lobunsizwa. In his early years, 
Musawenkosi Zigizendoda Mdluli was the king of stick 
fights. That is how he got his name “Zigizendoda”. “No 
one wanted to battle with me. Other boys would literally 
run away from me and I would chase them. My footsteps 
were so powerful that I inherited the name that described 
my movements - Zigizendoda - which directly translates to 
“footsteps of a man”, says Mdluli.

Mdluli is from the kwaNibela Tribal Authority, adjacent to the 
False Bay section of iSimangaliso, on the western shores of 
Lake St Lucia. The area comprises sand forest, thornveld 
and open savannah. 

Mdluli tells of how he survived living near a lake where 
fishing was a hobby. 

“It’s funny how no type of fish was ever eaten inside the 
home”, says Mdluli, “We would go fishing, but would 
prepare and eat the fish outside our homes”.

Mdluli points out that back in the day, the eating of fish was 
prohibited in homesteads: “Should you have caught a fish, 
you could share it with whomever but only as long as the 
eating was not done in the yard,” he says.

Here the visitor enjoys views of Lake St Lucia at its widest 
point. Popular activities include boating and fishing. Both 
animal and plant marine fossils are abundant along these 
ancient shores.

Mangazi Cave – the origin of the name Nibela

The Mangazi cave is where the Mdlulis and Mngomezulus 
first met people when they came into the country from 
Swaziland. 

“When we first got to kwaNibela we thought we were the 
first people to settle here (Mdlulis and Mngomezulus). One 
day we saw smoke coming from a distance and when we 
investigated we saw that there were people who were here 
before us who used the cave as a place to hide from other 
people as they were not used to them,” remembers Mdluli.
“Eventually they became used to having people around and 
the name Nibela came about when “these people” could 
not pronounce the name of the Mngomezulu iNkosi Lubele, 
the first iNkosi of kwaNibela.” The area is now also known 
as False Bay.
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Musawenkosi Zigizendoda Mdluli at the entrance to the Mangazi Cave
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The annual financial statements set out on pages 46 to 75 
have been prepared in accordance with the Accounting 
Standards as prescribed by the Minister of Finance in 
terms of Government Gazette number 31021, Notice 
Number 516, dated 9 May 2008 and also in terms of the 
standards and principles contained in Directives 2 and 5
issued by the ASB in March 2009 and April 2010. The 
financial statements have been prepared on the historical 
cost basis.      
 
The Board of Directors is responsible for the manner of 
presentation of the financial statements, the selection 
of accounting policies and the integrity of the financial 
information. The accounting policies have been approved 
by the Board.    
 
 

The Board has satisfied itself that the organisation has 
maintained a system of internal control designed to provide 
reasonable but not absolute assurance that the assets 
are safeguarded against material loss or unauthorised 
use and that transactions are properly authorised and 
recorded. The control system includes written accounting 
and control policies and procedures, clearly drawn lines of 
accountability and delegations of authority. All employees 
are required to maintain the highest ethical standards 
in ensuring that the organisation’s business practices 
are concluded in a manner which, in all reasonable 
circumstances, is above reproach. The concept of 
reasonable assurance recognises that the cost of control 
procedures should not exceed the expected benefits. The 
organisation maintains its internal control through, amongst 
other things, management review and a programme of 
internal audits.   

The annual financial statements for the year ended 
31 March 2014 set out on pages 46 to 75, have been 
approved by the Chief Executive Officer and the Board and 
are signed to that effect.

M Msimang A Zaloumis 

Chairman Chief Executive Officer 

31 July 2014

APPROVAL OF THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ON THE iSIMANGALISO WETLAND PARK AUTHORITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Introduction 

1. I have audited the financial statements of the iSimangaliso 
Wetland Park Authority set out on pages 46 to 75, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at  
31 March 2014, the statement of financial performance, 
statement of changes in net assets, and the cash flow 
statement for the year then ended, as well as the notes, 
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information.

Accounting authority’s responsibility for the financial 

statements

2. The Board of Directors, which constitutes the accounting 
authority, is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with South African Standards of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the 
requirements of the Public Finance Management Act 
of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999)(PFMA), and 
for such internal control as the accounting authority 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my 
audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South 
Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the general 
notice issued in terms thereof and International Standards 
on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with 
ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 

overall presentation of the financial statements. I believe 
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion 

5. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the iSimangaliso 
Wetland Park Authority as at 31 March 2014 and its 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then 
ended, in accordance with the SA Standards of GRAP and 
the requirements of the PFMA.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 

REQUIREMENTS

6. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued 
in terms thereof, I report the following findings on the 
reported performance information against predetermined 
objectives for selected objectives presented in the annual 
performance report, compliance with legislation as well as 
internal control. The objective of my tests was to identify 
reportable findings as described under each subheading 
but not to gather evidence to express assurance on 
these matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or 
conclusion on these matters.
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CONTINUED
REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT

Predetermined objectives

7. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the 
usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information for the following selected objective presented 
in the annual performance report of the public entity for 
the year ended 31 March 2014:
•	 Objective:	Conservation/Park	Operations	on	pages	26	

to 30.

8. I evaluated the reported performance information against 
the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability. 

9. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance 
information to determine whether it was presented in 
accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting 
principles and whether the reported performance was 
consistent with the planned objectives. I further performed 
tests to determine whether indicators and targets were 
well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound 
and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s 
Framework for managing programme performance 
information (FMPPI).

10. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance 
information to determine whether it was valid, accurate 
and complete.

11. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness 
and reliability of the reported performance information for 
Conservation/Park Operations.

Compliance with legislation

12. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the public 
entity had complied with applicable legislation regarding 
financial matters, financial management and other related 
matters. I did not identify any instances of material non-
compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as set 
out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA.

Internal control

13. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the 
financial statements, performance report and compliance 
with legislation. I did not identify any significant 
deficiencies in internal control.

OTHER REPORTS

Audit-related services and special audits

14. An agreed-upon procedures engagement was performed 
on donor funding. This was conducted during the year 
under review on non-financial information. Reports were 
issued on 15 December 2013 which covered the following 
periods: 31 July 2008 to 31 October 2011; 31 May 2008 to 

30 June 2010; 11 March 2005 to 30 September 2010 and  
28 July 2005 to 31 December 2010. Reports were also 
issued on 27 January 2014 which covered the periods  
1 August 2009 to 31 March 2013 and 1 September 2009 
to 31 June 2013. 

Pietermaritzburg
31 July 2014
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Ghost Mountain. Opposite: Aloe
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uMkhuze is overlooked by a mountain, called Ghost 
Mountain, that has been the scene of a number of bloody 
fights. The mountain is a historic battlefield and tombs of 
slain chiefs lie silently. Its shape is that of an old woman 
or witch head, which makes it easy to understand why 
the mountain is said to be haunted and to be a theatre of 
paranormal activities. 

It is said that at many times over the years, strange lights 
and flickering fires have been seen among the fissures and 
cliffs of the summit, accompanied by obscure noises and 
strange cries.

uMkhuze

More than 420 species of birds can be found in this 38,500 
hectare paradise within the iSimangaliso Wetland Park. 
Lion, leopard, black and white rhino, elephant, giraffe, wild 
dog, cheetah, hyaena and various antelope are prevalent in 
the area. 

A guided walk through the Sycamore Fig Forest with its 
impressive aerial boardwalk and a visit to the Nsumo Pan 
are favourite activities for visitors to the uMkhuze section of 
the Park.

GHOST MOUNTAIN 
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
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We are pleased to present our report for the financial year 
ended 31 March 2014.

Audit Committee members and attendance:

The Audit Committee consists of the members listed 
hereunder and meets at least twice per annum as per its 
approved terms of reference. During the current year four 
meetings were held.

Name of Member 27 May 2013 25 July 2013 27 Aug 2013 24 Mar 2014

L Quayle

ME Stewart

P Dlamini

K Mathebula

 
Audit Committee responsibility

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its 
responsibilities arising from section 38(1)(a) of the PFMA and 
Treasury Regulation 3.1.13.

The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted 
appropriate formal terms of reference as its audit committee 
charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter 
and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained 
therein.

The effectiveness of internal control 

The system of controls is designed to provide cost effective 
assurance that assets are safeguarded and that liabilities 
and working capital are efficiently managed. In line with the 

PFMA and the King III Report on Corporate Governance 
requirements, Internal Audit provides the Audit Committee 
and management with assurance that the internal controls 
are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of 
the risk management process, as well as the identification 
of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the 
controls and processes. From the various reports of the 
Internal Auditors, the Audit Report on the Annual Financial 
Statements and the management letter of the Auditor-General, 
it was noted that no significant or material non-compliance 
with prescribed policies and procedures have been reported.  
Accordingly, we can report that the system of internal control 
for the period under review was efficient and effective. 

The quality of the monthly/quarterly reports submitted in 

terms of the PFMA

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the content and quality 
of quarterly reports prepared and issued by the Accounting 
Authority of the iSimangaliso Wetland Park Authority during the 
year under review. 

Evaluation of Financial Statements

The Audit Committee has:
•	 Reviewed	and	discussed	the	audited	annual	financial	

statements to be included in the annual report, with the 
Auditor-General and the Accounting Authority

•	 Reviewed	the	Auditor-General’s	management	letter	and	
management’s response thereto

•	 Reviewed	changes	in	accounting	policies	and	practices
•	 Reviewed	significant	adjustments	resulting	from	the	audit

The Audit Committee accepts the Auditor-General’s 
conclusions on the annual financial statements, and is of 
the opinion that the audited annual financial statements be 
accepted and read together with the report of the Auditor-
General.

Chairman of the Audit Committee
31 July 2014
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The iSimangaliso Wetland Park Authority’s Board is cognisant 
of its obligations and responsibilities under the World 
Heritage Convention Act, the Protected Areas Act and the 
Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and, more broadly, 
of corporate-governance issues. It recognises that sound 
governance is important to enable the iSimangaliso Authority 
to properly fulfil its objectives and to retain the confidence of 
all relevant stakeholders. The Board’s purpose is to formulate 
policy and to oversee the executive of the iSimangaliso 
Authority. Members of the Board are mindful that they have a 
fiduciary duty to all stakeholders and are accountable to them 
through the relevant organs of state. Members of the Board 
are required to exercise care and skill in the performance 
of their duties. Extract from the Charter of the iSimangaliso 
Wetland Park Authority’s Board of Directors. 

Corporate governance is accorded the highest importance by 
the iSimangaliso Authority. Its Board and staff are required to 
conduct themselves with integrity and in the best interests of 
the organisation. 

The iSimangaliso Authority’s Board believes that the 
organisation has substantially applied and complied with the 
principles incorporated in the Code of Corporate Practices & 
Conduct set out in the King Report on Corporate Governance 
for South Africa 2002 (King II Report), as well as the Protocol 
on Corporate Governance in the Public Sector 2002 and 
applicable management guidelines set down by UNESCO, 
and has begun integrating the more salient recommendations 
of the 2009 King III Report in its governance systems. 

The organisational arrangements and systems that have 
been put in place to ensure good corporate governance 
embrace the inclusion of non-executive directors on the 
Board, the use of Audit, Executive and Tender Committees, 

as well as independent (outsourced) internal audits. Detailed 
financial policies and procedures make it clear that corporate 
governance and financial control are the responsibilities of 
every staff member in the organisation. 

Governing bodies

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is appointed by the Minister of Water 
and Environmental Affairs. It comprises a majority of non-
executive directors and meets quarterly. The Chairman and 
Vice Chairman are both non-executive directors. The board 
comprises representatives from key stakeholder groups.

Non-executive Directors 

M Msimang Chairman
K Mathebula  Vice Chairman 
S Mancotywa Department of Environmental Affairs
Z Gumede kwaMduku Traditional Council
A Lax 
T Mhlongo Land Claimants 
P Dlamini Ezemvelo KZN Wildlife
B Zwane
T Nzama 
  
Executive Directors 
A Zaloumis Chief Executive Officer of the   
 iSimangaliso Wetland Park Authority

Roles and Functions

The CEO is the entity’s Accounting Authority. The Board 
of Directors is responsible for the formulation of policy for 
the Park and for overseeing its implementation. It is also 
responsible for the adoption of strategic plans, for monitoring 
operational performance and management, for approving 
policy and processes to ensure the integrity of the Park’s risk 

uMkhuze region
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management and internal controls, and for the appointment 
of the executive staff. The Board has approved a charter that 
provides guidance to its directors in discharging their duties 
and responsibilities. The Board carries out a self-evaluation on 
a regular basis.

Remuneration of the directors is prescribed by Treasury. In 
the case of the current Board, the majority of non-executive 
directors have elected to work on a pro bono basis. The CEO’s 
salary is determined in accordance with the grading and 
remuneration system that was approved by the then Minister 
of Environmental Affairs and Tourism in concurrence with the 
Minister of Finance.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing audit 
functions, internal control and the financial-reporting process. 
The committee comprises a number of independent members 
who are qualified chartered accountants. Other members 
include the Vice Chairman of the Board, Karin Mathebula, and 
Poppy Dlamini (who is also a member of the Board). 

The Chief Financial Officer of the Department of Environmental 
Affairs and the Auditor-General attend meetings of the audit 
committee as observers. 

Internal Audit

The internal audit function provides an independent, objective 
appraisal and evaluation of the risk management processes, 
internal controls and governance processes, and identifies 
corrective actions and enhancements to these.

The internal audit function is outsourced. These audits are 
carried out according to a three-year rolling plan, updated 
annually, and are based on the risks identified in the risk 

management process. 

Risk Management

The Board’s policy on risk management embraces all 
significant risks to the iSimangaliso Authority which might 
undermine the achievement of its business objectives. In 
addition to regular reports by the executive, the Board also 
receives assurance from its internal auditors on risk and 
internal control.  

The Board is of the opinion that appropriate risk management 
policies and practices are in place, and that adequate 
systems and expertise are being applied to achieve 
compliance with those policies and procedures. Mechanisms 
for managing risk include, where appropriate, the transfer 
of risk to third parties (for example, through public-private 
partnerships), the maintenance of an appropriate mix of 
self-insurance and commercial insurance for risks that the 
organisation retains, internal controls, and business-continuity 
planning, amongst other things. 

Additional information is provided in the Accounting Policies 
section of the Annual Financial Statements. 

Environmental Management

The iSimangaliso Authority and its Board abide by the National 
Environmental Management Act: Protected Areas Act, and 
the World Heritage Convention Act, amongst others. The 
day-to-day wildlife and biodiversity management is carried out 
by Ezemvelo KZN Wildlife in accordance with a management 
agreement between it and the iSimangaliso Authority, pursuant 
to the regulations under the World Heritage Convention Act. 

The Board believes that its environmental programmes 
conform to international best practice and are in line with the 
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Park’s inscription as a World Heritage Site which was based 
on its outstanding ecological beauty and bio-diversity.

Social Management

The Board has adopted government’s broad-based 
black economic empowerment (BBBEE) policies and has 
implemented a system based on the Department of Trade 
and Industry’s codes and, where appropriate, on the Tourism 
Charter. Prospective new tourism enterprises in the Park are 
appraised in terms of a BEE scorecard and are required 
to include local communities as mandatory equity partners 
in their operations and as preferred service-providers in 
their procurement plans. The Park also implements special 
community-development programmes integral to its 
management of social and environmental risk.

Social and Environmental Risk

The Park is situated in an area beset with unemployment 
and poverty, and people living in and around the Park see 
it as a source of economic benefit, both directly in the form 
of employment, and indirectly through the use of its natural 
resources for income generation. 

To manage this risk, the iSimangaliso Authority implements 
special community-development programmes in areas such 
as craft production, interpretation of culture, tourism training, 
art, life-skills, HIV/AIDS awareness and entrepreneurship. 
It also sources people from neighbouring communities in 
the execution of its construction and land-rehabilitation 
programmes and provides alternatives to unsustainable 
practices that impact negatively on the ecology.  

The iSimangaliso Authority also participates actively in crime-
prevention fora in the area.   

At a macro-level, the iSimangaliso Authority monitors the 
impact of climate change on the natural resources in the Park. 
It has also raised funds for the improvement of the hydrology 
of Lake St Lucia. 

Communications Strategy

The iSimangaliso Authority maintains a policy of open 
communication with its stakeholders on matters of significant 
interest and concern to them. Every effort is made to ensure 
that the information furnished to stakeholders conforms with 
the criteria of openness, substance over form, relevance, 
clarity, effectiveness, transparency and objectivity.  

The iSimangaliso Authority publishes regular newsflashes 
which keep stakeholders informed about developments 
as well as a website. Public consultations and meetings 
are held to keep community groups, environmental NGOs, 
relevant public institutions and private parties informed about 
the Park, the challenges it faces and activities undertaken. 
Regular meetings are held with land claimants and Traditional 
Councils. The iSimangaliso Authority also participates in a 
number of intergovernmental committees and fora.

Safety

The iSimangaliso Authority abides by occupational health and 
safety laws and regulations. Staff and contractors working in 
the Park are trained in how to deal with dangerous game and 
how to use and dispose of toxic chemicals, especially in the 
Park’s alien vegetation-clearing programme.

Sycamore Fig Forest - uMkhuze



The iSimangaliso Authority (iSimangaliso) reviews and 
revises its corporate strategy annually in line with government 
imperatives, its mandate in terms of the World Heritage 
Convention Act, changes in the business environment and its 
actual delivery. Its activities are monitored both quantitatively 
and qualitatively to ensure that the targets that are set are 

achieved while observing iSimangaliso’s code of ethics 
and conduct, as well as its policies and procedures. The 
quantitative indicators are determined by taking into account: 
•	 iSimangaliso’s	risks
•	 Best	practice	in	conservation,	development	and	

empowerment/transformation

•	 Costs	and	benefits	of	collecting	the	information	vs	its	
usefulness to management

The short-term actions identified in the corporate strategy are 
distilled into an annual plan of operation which sets out the 
activities for the year. 

iSimangaliso’s primary objective is to conserve and protect 
the World Heritage Values for which it was inscribed. In order 
to do so it has set itself the following short and medium-term 
objectives.

Overarching objectives 

•	 To	ensure	that	the	World	Heritage	values	are	conserved

Short-term actions

•	 Implement	the	Integrated	Management	Plan	
•	 Oversee	the	implementation	of	the	Conservation	

Operational Plan
•	 Implement	programmes	to	support	sustainable	

environmental management
•	 Implement	co-management	agreements/People	and	Parks	

programme
•	 Implement	infrastructure	programme
•	 Maintain	and	strengthen	stakeholder	relationships

Medium-term aims

•	 Establish	and	manage	the	Park	as	one	open	ecological	area
•	 Conserve	the	Park’s	terrestrial,	freshwater	and	marine	

biodiversity and ecological processes cost-effectively 
observing global best practice

•	 Rehabilitate	degraded	areas	and	restore	ecological	
functioning within the Park

•	 Mitigate	possible	negative	impacts	to	the	Park,	from	
activities in the buffer zone eg catchment degradation, 
visual impacts, loss/damage to ecological links

•	 Procure	funding	from	government,	donors,	private	sector	
for conservation programmes and optimise cost recovery

PROGRESS REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 2014

CONSERVATION/PARK OPERATIONS

Indicators:

Objective Outcome 1 Indicator
Target
2013/2014

Actual
2013/2014

To ensure that the World Heritage values are 
conserved 

Improved conservation of World Heritage values 
based on the ecosystems approach

Target for detection of poaching incidents 2 weeks 2 weeks

Target for detection of illegal developments 48 hours 48 hours

Target for response to EIAs and reported 
developments

100% 100%
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1 The activities that will be undertaken in order to achieve the outcome are detailed in the annual plan of operation set out in Annexure 1.
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Strategic Objective Outputs Key Performance Indicator Activities Progress/Challenges/Corrective Actions

To ensure the World Heritage 
values are conserved

Ensure adherence to Conservation 
Operational Plan

•	 Detection of illegal developments 
within 48 hours

•	 Detection of poaching incidents 
within two weeks

•	 Detection of developments in 
zone of influence within 48 hours

•	 Attend Conservation Operational 
Plan (COP) meetings

•	 Review draft Conservation 
Operational Plan submitted by 
Ezemvelo KZN (EKZN) Wildlife

•	 Approve Conservation 
Operational Plan

•	 Review progress against 
Conservation Operational Plan 
on quarterly basis

KPI met
•	 Quarterly report received and reviewed. There were no illegal 

developments identified in the Park. 405 poaching incidents were 
reported – all of these were detected within the target time.  

•	 For zone of influence refer buffer zone below for more information

Implementation of 2013/2014 
programmes supporting 
sustainable environmental 
management:
a) Effective environmental auditing •	 Five environmental audits 

completed
Park facilities
•	 Develop and implement annual 

programme for inspection of 
facilities in the Park

•	 Draft and submit reports/
recommendations to EXCO

•	 Communicate findings to 
relevant parties

•	 Conduct follow-up inspections

KPI exceeded. Six environmental management audits were completed

b) Effective waste management •	 Implementation of plan for 
phasing out of current waste 
management practices and 
introducing environmentally 
appropriate solutions initiated

•	 Inspect waste facilities in Park 
per agreed implementation plan

•	 Draft reports 
•	 Complete the waste audit
•	 Communicate findings to 

relevant parties (ie operators of 
waste systems)

•	 Monitor corrective measures 
taken by above parties

KPI met
Refer (a) environmental auditing above; waste has been incorporated into 
these audits
Ongoing issues outside of iSimangaliso’s control:
•	 Authorised landfills outside the Park are non-existent which leads to 

dumping in the Park
•	 Mtubatuba waste site closure – the municipality, which is under 

administration, has not complied with a DEA notice to close and 
rehabilitate the site; the buy-back centre has been refurbished and an 
implementer’s forum established. iSimangaliso attended the first meeting 
in November

c) Rehabilitation of degraded 
habitats and ecosystems

•	 10% of former commercial 
forestry and other incompatible 
land use areas rehabilitated

•	 Map areas for rehabilitation
•	 Issue rehabilitation contracts
•	 Complete contracts for the year

KPI has been exceeded (5 128ha of a total of 16 000ha = 32%)

CONSERVATION/PARK OPERATIONS CONTINUED
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Strategic Objective Outputs Key Performance Indicator Activities Progress/Challenges/Corrective Actions

•	 Annual alien invasive removal 
programme completed on time, 
to budget and within funding 
requirements

•	 Complete annual plan of 
operation

•	 Issue contracts
•	 Conduct audits

KPI met; (31 087ha less 5 128ha = 26 680ha equivalent to 11.6% of Park’s 
terrestrial area)

d) Game restocking with a view 
to re-establishing extinct 
populations and achieving 
carrying capacity

•	 Annual game management 
programme completed

•	 Review schedule of game 
introductions and off-takes 
submitted by EKZN Wildlife

•	 Approve schedule
•	 Monitor implementation

KPI exceeded
Animal introductions into Ozabeni /uMkhuze include:
-   5 black rhino
-   28 white rhino
-   122 blue wildebeest
-   29 warthog 
-   9 kudu
-   24 waterbuck
-   15 oribi
-   4 lion
Animal removals from Ozabeni /uMkhuze include:
-   116 nyala

e) Compliance monitoring •	 Appropriate legal action taken 
in respect of infractions (ie fines, 
court action etc)

Terrestrial Compliance
•	 Review reports submitted by 

EKZN Wildlife (these include 
database of incidents, warnings 
and fines issued, and criminal 
cases in progress)

•	 Where appropriate issue 
watching brief for the criminal 
case

•	 Issue warning letters, fines as 
appropriate or take court action

•	 Conduct environmental 
awareness for Park users

•	 Conduct workshops with other 
organs of state and the judiciary 
in respect of environmental law

KPI met
Terrestrial Compliance
•	 The reports submitted were reviewed and the legal action taken found to 

be appropriate in the circumstances. In order to improve the conviction 
rate it was agreed that a capacity building programme be developed 
specifically for the judiciary, police and law-enforcement staff. A tender 
has been prepared and the programme will be funded through the GEF 
grant

CONSERVATION/PARK OPERATIONS CONTINUED



29

Strategic Objective Outputs Key Performance Indicator Activities Progress/Challenges/Corrective Actions

Marine compliance 
•	 Review marine inspection 

reports submitted by EKZN 
Wildlife (these include database 
of incidents, warnings and fines 
issued, and criminal cases in 
progress)

•	 Where appropriate issue 
watching brief for the criminal 
case

•	 Draft and submit reports/
recommendations to EXCO

•	 Communicate findings to EKZN 
Wildlife 

•	 Conduct follow-up inspections

Marine Compliance
•	 Reports received and reviewed

Infrastructure
•	 Monitor environmental 

compliance by contractors
•	 Issue notices where appropriate 

and/or levy fines

Infrastructure Compliance
•	 Signage infrastructure in progress - eco reports indicate work is 

progressing satisfactorily

f) Buffer zone management •	 Appropriate legal action taken 
in respect of infractions in buffer 
zone

•	 Review and respond to 
applications for developments in 
buffer zone

•	 Maintain register of applications 
showing status of each

•	 Inspect buffer zone 
developments for compliance 
with Park conditions

•	 Alert relevant authority to any 
non-compliance 

KPI met; 44 applications in process

g) Feasibility study in respect of 
hydrological solution for St Lucia 
mouth

•	 Initiate implementation of 
preferred solution

•	 Complete study
•	 Implement EIA-type process in 

parallel (ie model consultation 
process on EIA process)

KPI met. Report completed. In public consultation and review phase

CONSERVATION/PARK OPERATIONS CONTINUED
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Strategic Objective Outputs Key Performance Indicator Activities Progress/Challenges/Corrective Actions

h) Community-based natural 
resource use

•	 Harvesting within targets and 
parameters set in policy and 
protocols

•	 Monitor implementation against 
policy

KPI met

i) Input into TFCA/Mozambique 
World Heritage Listing

•	 Comments on listing application 
submitted

•	 Participate in TFCA 
implementation structures

•	 This process is the responsibility 
of the Mozambique Government. 
iSimangaliso provides technical 
support as it has experience 
in the field. it is also an area of 
interest as it would contribute to 
and promote the conservation 
of iSimangaliso’s World Heritage 
values

•	 The chairmanship of the 
Lubombo TFCA (Kosi) is a 
rotating one. iSimangaliso 
provides support to KZN 
Province and DEA

KPI met; technical support provided on request (process is led by 
Mozambique Government and consequently is out of the control of the 
iSimangaliso Authority)

j) Review of IMP and local area 
plans

•	 Two local area plans drafted •	 Draft terms of reference
•	 Appoint consultants
•	 Complete consultation process
•	 Prepare draft document for 

approval

KPI not met due to lack of funds. The deliverable was contingent on grant 
funding

Complete infrastructure programme 
for the 2013/2014 year

•	 Project programme for the year 
achieved

•	 Establish project programme
•	 Where required appoint 

contractors
•	 Monitor construction
•	 Decommission defunct 

infrastructure and rehabilitate 
affected areas

KPI not met; 
•	 The project was held up largely by the liquidation of Sanyati and the 

attendant financial considerations. A new contracting strategy has 
been decided. The new methodology requires smaller projects in order 
to enable greater local participation. Meetings were held with senior 
counsel and the documents are being reviewed following those inputs. 
Following those meetings a review of the infrastructure programme 
itself is under discussion vis-à-vis the tourism and revenue generation 
strategies

•	 Signage programme under implementation  

CONSERVATION/PARK OPERATIONS CONTINUED



31

Transformation is regarded as a cross-cutting objective by 
iSimangaliso. In other words, each unit is required to develop 
an implementation plan in response to the organisation’s 
strategy in respect of transformation. The overarching 
objective is to optimise empowerment participation in all 
activities of the Park in a way that will improve the livelihoods 
of historically disadvantaged individuals and communities 
living adjacent to the Park.

Short-term actions

•	 Create	temporary	and	permanent	jobs
•	 Continue	to	implement	and/or	support	local	economic	

development programmes such as craft, arts, enterprise 
development and tourism skills

•	 Continue	natural	resource	harvesting	programme

Medium-term aims

•	 Source	stable	and	consistent	funds	for	the	support	of	local	
economic development programmes

2 The activities that will be undertaken in order to achieve the outcome are detailed in the annual plan of operation set out in Annexure 1.
3 Qualifying expenditure is expenditure on non-state agencies.

TRANSFORMATION (SEED)

Indicators:

Objective Outcome 2 Indicator
Target
2013/2014

Actual
2013/2014

To optimise empowerment in all activities of the 
Park in a way that will improve the livelihoods 
of historically-disadvantaged individuals and 
communities living adjacent to the Park through job 
creation and procurement

Improved access to work and income generating 
opportunities

Creation of temporary jobs (direct and indirect) 1 200 1 514

New permanent jobs (direct and indirect) from park 
related activities

10 23

Increase number of BEE SMMEs (ownership in 
business 40% or more) through iSimangaliso 
programmes

50 82

BEE procurement as percentage of qualifying 
expenditure 3

71 76
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Strategic Objective Outputs Key Performance Indicator Activities Progress/Challenges/Corrective Actions

To optimise empowerment in 
all activities of the Park

Equity participation in tourism 
product in the Park

•	 Three activity licences with 
majority local community-
ownership

•	 One accommodation PPP 
with local community equity 
participation

•	 Refer activities under 
commercialisation programme 
and training for people living in 
and adjacent to Park, specifically 
enterprise development

KPI met

Temporary and permanent jobs for 
land claimants and communities

•	 1 200 temporary jobs
•	 10 permanent jobs

•	 Job creation opportunities within 
operations and projects in the 
Park have been identified in the 
following projects:
-    Alien clearing
-    Construction of infrastructure
-    Maintenance and facilities 

management
•	 Incorporate targets for 

job creation in third party 
agreements (eg contractors)

•	 Assist with selection processes 
for contractor labour

•	 Monitor compliance of third 
parties with contractual targets

KPI exceeded: 
•	 Temporary jobs achieved = 1 514 
•	 Permanent jobs achieved = 23 

TRANSFORMATION (SEED) CONTINUED
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Strategic Objective Outputs Key Performance Indicator Activities Progress/Challenges/Corrective Actions

Completion of training programmes 
for communities living in and 
adjacent to the Park

•	 400 people trained 
•	 25 students awarded bursaries 

for undergraduate study
•	 50 SMMEs supported

•	 These areas have been identified 
for capacity building in this 
financial year:
-    Construction
-    Art
-    Craft
-    Tourism (including cultural 

tourism and About 
iSimangaliso)

-    Leadership
-    Administration
-    Undergraduate education in 

park-related fields through 
education fund

-    Enterprise development
•	 Identify participants/participant 

groups
•	 Complete skills audits as 

required by donors
•	 Appoint service providers
•	 Vet the design training 

programmes
•	 Monitor the implementation of 

training programmes

KPI exceeded
•	 People trained: 1 143
•	 Bursaries awarded: 10 new and 37 continuing studies bringing the total 

number of bursaries to 47  
•	  SMMEs supported: 174 

TRANSFORMATION (SEED) CONTINUED
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The objective of the commercialisation programme is to 
optimise the Park’s revenue generation in a commercially- and 
environmentally-sustainable manner that fosters job creation 
and empowerment of historically disadvantaged communities

Short-term actions

•	 Commercialise/redevelop	selected	existing	and	new	
facilities in the Park based on demand and supply factors

•	 Tender	range	of	activity	concessions
•	 Improve	day	visitor	facilities	and	activities
•	 Implement	the	marketing	and	branding	strategy	for	the	

Park
•	 Develop	an	effective	system	to	monitor	concessions

Medium-term aims

•	 Identify	new	business	opportunities
•	 Reappraise	investment	strategy

4 The activities that will be undertaken in order to achieve the outcome are detailed in the annual plan of operation set out in Annexure 1.

COMMERCIALISATION

Indicators:

Objective Outcome 4 Indicator
Target
2013/2014

Actual
2013/2014

To optimise the Park’s revenue generation 
in a commercially- and environmentally-
sustainable manner, that fosters job-creation 
and empowerment of historically-disadvantaged 
communities

Improved financial sustainability Increase revenue R10.2m R12.4m

Increase in visitor numbers 489 722 533 451
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Strategic Objective Outputs Key Performance Indicator Activities Progress/Challenges/Corrective Actions

To optimise the Park’s 
revenue generation in 
a commercially- and 
environmentally-sustainable 
manner, that fosters job 
creation and empowerment 
of historically-disadvantaged 
communities

Increased revenue and visitor-
numbers to the Park

•	 2% increase in visitor numbers 
to the Park

•	 Implement the annual marketing 
plan which includes the following 
for the year:
-    Media junkets - four 

to coincide with Park 
announcements

-    Four sporting events/festivals
-    Four editorials with key 

publications to market the 
destination and approved  
Park operators

-    Advertorials subject to 
budget availability

•	 Consumer shows - Getaway, Jhb
•	 Participate in regional initiatives, 

specifically the Lubombo SDI 
and Tourism Route and  
East 3 Route

Day-visitor facilities
•	 Improvement of park facilities 

(refer infrastructure section)
Service levels
•	 Implement mystery guest 

programme for the year with a 
view to assessing and improving 
service levels

KPI met; visitor numbers above target but 1% down from the previous 
year. These entries exclude people on foot (a non-paying category), a 
number that has increased significantly in Sodwana Bay. Feedback from 
licensed operators confirms that the market has improved and there has 
been an increase in the number of people undertaking guided activities. 
The standard of Ezemvelo accommodation is a concerning issue and the 
deficiencies have been brought to the attention of the responsible persons  

COMMERCIALISATION CONTINUED
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COMMERCIALISATION CONTINUED

Strategic Objective Outputs Key Performance Indicator Activities Progress/Challenges/Corrective Actions

•	 2% increase in commercial 
revenue to the Park

•	 The commercialisation 
programme for the year includes:
-   Bhangazi Heritage Site
-   Charters Creek
-   Fanies Island
-   Assess demand and supply 

for activities and establish 
requirement for additional 
licences; tender where 
appropriate

 -  Re-tender of any activity 
licences that lapse within the 
next year

-   Monitoring of EIA processes 
and construction of facilities 

-   Market surveys at gates
•	 Contract compliance/contract 

management
•	 Review of Park pricing strategy 

(access and other user charges)

KPI met; revenue for the year exceeded target by 22%; and up 8% from the 
previous year

•	 Complete facilities management 
and maintenance programme on 
budget and within timeframes

•	 Identify maintenance 
requirements and effect 
maintenance

•	 Monitor maintenance/facilities 
management contracts

KPI met
•	 Day-visitor facilities – performance of contractor below par; corrective 

action taken 
•	 Water maintenance – water usage recorded and leaks repaired within 

acceptable timeframes. Water remains a critical issue as supply from the 
municipality is inconsistent

•	 Road maintenance – ad hoc inspections conducted and prioritised 
repairs completed

•	 Fence maintenance – three fence inspections conducted - fence 
satisfactory

•	 Branding strategy •	 Review database of people 
using park brand and name, 
including copies of brochures 
etc

•	 Assess use of brand and issue 
guidelines to ensure proper use

•	 Determine merchandising 
opportunities

KPI not met due to lengthy tender process. The tender was adjudicated in 
the last quarter and the necessary approvals sought from the World Bank
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Strategic Objective Outputs Key Performance Indicator Activities Progress/Challenges/Corrective Actions

To interpret and present 
the World Heritage values 
among stakeholder groups

Implementation of interpretation 
strategy for the Park

•	 Interpretation strategy •	 Establish best mechanism for 
development of the strategy 
ie in-house or secure external 
resources

•	 If external, undertake 
procurement process to appoint 
consultant

•	 Assessment of interpretation 
options to consider feasibility of 
interpretive centres

•	 Strategy and implementation 
plan approval

•	 Materials development

KPI met. An additional study may be undertaken in the new financial year  

Implementation of the annual 
communication/PR programme in 
respect of communities living in and 
adjacent to the Park

•	 40 schools participated in school 
awards programme

•	 Issue application forms and 
posters

•	 Adjudicate the submissions
•	 Host awards event
•	 Complete fundraising for 

2014/15 financial year
•	 Conduct roadshow with schools 

in respect of 2014/15 awards

KPI met. Due to funding and resource considerations it was agreed to host a 
large school awards event every second year. A series of smaller events and 
activities were held in tandem with other programmes in this financial year 
which included presentations to and participation of 91 schools. Six schools 
received prizes in the form of certificates and a package of books related to 
conservation in recognition of their contribution to conservation

•	 5% increase in number of 
schools coming to the Park

•	 Disseminate information re 
schools tours programme

•	 Process applications 
•	 Secure guides for tours
•	 Conduct tours

KPI exceeded; increase of 12% from 93 in the previous year to 104 this year

•	 2 700 children to participate 
in environmental awareness 
programme

•	 Design course material
•	 Identify participants
•	 Identify tutors
•	 Implement programme

KPI not met for reasons out of iSimangaliso’s control. The funder failed to 
transfer the tranche of money despite having authorised payment. The target 
was contingent on funding from the LOTTO programme which was delayed 
due to internal issues in the NLDTF. The funding was finally transferred in 
February 2014. The targets and deadlines will be recrafted accordingly

COMMERCIALISATION CONTINUED
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Strategic Objective Outputs Key Performance Indicator Activities Progress/Challenges/Corrective Actions

•	 12 workshops held with 
community groups across the 
Park

•	 Design structured 
communication process, 
including identification of cost-
effective distribution channels

•	 Complete material
•	 Implement programme

KPI met; 12 meetings held

•	 Implementation of annual 
communication/PR programme 
in respect of land claimants

•	 12 workshops conducted •	 Agree plan for the year 
in accordance with co-
management agreements

•	 Implement programme
•	 Attend RLCC meetings and 

support land claim settlement 
process

KPI exceeded; 24 workshops held

•	 Implementation of annual 
communication/PR programme 
in respect of environmental, 
government and groups other 
than local-community

•	 24 newsflashes emailed
•	 Two park tours for tourism 

product-owners living/operating 
adjacent to/in the Park

•	 Maintain newsflash database
•	 Prepare and send newsflashes
•	 Update website
•	 Investigate social media
•	 Agree tour areas and issue 

invitations
•	 Host tours into the Park

KPI met 
•	 23 newsflashes and one communique bringing total to 24
•	 Two park tours (Western Shores and international tour guides)

COMMERCIALISATION CONTINUED
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iSimangaliso maintains the highest standards of internal 
control in order to ensure that its operations are properly 
funded and cost-effective, with effective controls. This 
requires the full, accurate and prompt reporting of accounting, 
management and statutory information.

Short-term actions

•	 Ensure	good	financial	planning
•	 Procure	requisite	short-term	funds	
•	 Develop	efficient	treasury	operation
•	 Instil	good	internal	controls
•	 Facilitate	good	corporate	governance
•	 Ensure	proper,	effective	custody	of	assets
•	 Produce	accurate,	timely	and	meaningful	reports
•	 Ensure	compliance	with	PFMA,	World	Heritage	 

Convention Act
•	 Obviate	audit	qualifications	and	adverse	audit	reports

Medium-term aims

•	 Procure	funding	from	government,	donors,	private	sector	
to fully implement long-term plans

•	 Strive	for	financial	sustainability

iSimangaliso objective is to cultivate an environment that will 
enable it to attract, develop and retain the best people to 
deliver its strategy.

Short-term actions

•	 Implement	employment	equity	policy
•	 Recruit,	appoint	key	unfilled	posts
•	 Implement	succession	planning	programme
•	 Develop	and	institute	training	programmes

Medium-term aims

•	 Develop,	institute	training	programmes
•	 Develop	appropriate	succession	plan

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

5 The activities that will be undertaken in order to achieve the outcome are detailed in the annual plan of operation set out in Annexure 1.

Indicators:

Objective Outcome 5 Indicator
Target
2013/2014

Actual
2013/2014

To ensure that iSimangaliso’s operations are 
properly funded and cost-effectively managed 
while maintaining an appropriate system of internal 
control and reporting of accounting, management, 
and statutory information

Effective financial management Unqualified audit opinion Unqualified Audit Opinion

Finance and Administration

Human Resources



40

Strategic Objective Outputs Key Performance Indicator Activities Progress/Challenges/Corrective Actions

To make research relevant 
to park management and 
transform the research 
sector in the Park 

Research reports •	 Quarterly reports tabled •	 Identify research needs in the 
Park

•	 Approve relevant research via 
research committee and/or 
commission research directly

•	 Table quarterly 
recommendations to EXCO

KPI met; total research projects presently underway is 165

To cultivate an environment 
that will enable iSimangaliso 
to attract, develop and 
retain the best people to 
deliver its strategy. Position 
iSimangaliso as an employer 
of choice

Maintain appropriate staffing and 
skills levels

•	 80% retention of staff  •	 Source appropriate training 
materials/trainers

•	 Implement second phase of 
training programme 

KPI met; there was one resignation during the course of the year and one 
new appointment. 
Staff training/programmes for the year:
•	 EMI course – four staff members
•	 Study assistance – four staff members (all postgraduate assistance)
•	 Wellness programme – all staff 

To ensure that iSimangaliso’s 
operations are properly 
funded and cost-effectively 
managed while maintaining 
an appropriate system of 
internal control and reporting 
of accounting, management, 
and statutory information

Effective cooperative governance •	 Conclude agreements with 
government agencies

•	 Identify issues and agencies 
where there is a need for 
cooperative relationships

•	 Engage agencies on specific 
issues

KPI met; critical issue is planning in the region 
•	 iSimangaliso CEO is on the regional planning commission which enables 

iSimangaliso to understand what is happening
•	 Mtuba Municipality – agreement on planning protocols in the Park and 

the development of the erf 324

Clean external audit opinion •	 Tabling of annual report on or 
before 31 August in Parliament

•	 Preparation and submission of 
monthly and quarterly financial 
and progress reports

•	 Preparation and submission of 
reports to other external bodies 
including World Heritage/
Unesco  

•	 Completion of two internal audits 
without significant findings and 
resolution of audit queries and 
follow-up items

•	 Preparation of annual financial 
statements by end May 2013

•	 Review policies as necessary 
and secure board approval

KPI met

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CONTINUED
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Fever tree, Ghost Mountain area
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Fish traps, Kosi Bay. Opposite: Gilbert Ngubane



KO
SI

 B
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GILBERT NGUBANE  
Gilbert Ngubane was born and bred at kwaNgwanase, 
known to many as Manguzi, situated at the northern-most 
section of the iSimangaliso Wetland Park. According to 
Ngubane, Kosi Bay is simply a name used to market their 
beautiful land. 

“Visitors from all over the world have always loved Kosi 
Bay,” says Ngubane. 

Kosi, in fact, is not even a bay, but an estuarine system 
comprising four linked lakes.

The way of life of the people in the area has changed 
significantly. In the early days doctors were not known and 
traditional healers were the norm. Says Ngubane, “We grew 
up in the days when hospitals did not exist and got medical 
help from traditional healers, who do still exist – however 
they can’t be trusted these days.”

700-year-old fishing kraals

The area is known for its 700-year-old traditional system of 
fish-trapping in woven baskets. 

“My dad, like many other people, owned a fish kraal which 
we still use today” says Ngubane, “All the fish kraals belong 
to specific families and are handed down through the 
generations.”

According to Ngubane, in the early days shops never 
existed. He says, “We never went to the shops - well there 
weren’t any anyway. We ate natural foods ranging from 
herbs to fish.”
 
Kosi Bay, although in a remote part of northern KwaZulu-
Natal, is well worth a visit for the beauty of its isolated 
white beaches, palm-fringed reed channels, lakes and 
waterways.



The directors present their annual report which forms part of 
the audited annual financial statements of the group for the 
year ended 31 March 2014.

The iSimangaliso Wetland Park is incorporated as a Schedule 
3A Public Entity under the Public Finance Management Act, 
1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999), as amended (PFMA). 

The iSimangaliso Authority’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 
acts as the entity’s Accounting Authority in terms of the PFMA, 
the Board of the Authority having been categorised as an 
advisory board by National Treasury.
 
Directors for the year ended 31 March 2014: 

Non-Executive    

M Msimang Chairman   
K Mathebula Vice Chairman
iNkosi Gumede
S Mancotywa
A Lax
T Mhlongo
P Dlamini
T Nzama
B Zwane
Executive

A Zaloumis CEO

Organisational structure

The iSimangaliso Authority has four operating units: Park 
Operations; Social Development, Policy, Planning and 
Research; Commercial and Financial. These units undertake 
the programmes reflected in the detailed Statement 

of Financial Performance, namely: infrastructure, park 
establishment, land care, local economic development and 
research and monitoring.

The Park Operations unit establishes conservation policy, 
and oversees estate management and the implementation 
of conservation aspects of a management agreement with 
Ezemvelo KZN Wildlife. The Finance unit is responsible for 
financial management, and the Commercial unit for tourism 
and related development. The Social Development, Policy, 
Planning and Research unit is responsible for developing 
sustainability strategies and for implementing training 
programmes for communities. It also manages the Park’s 
research programmes.

All units are required to develop and implement black 
economic-empowerment strategies pertaining to their 
functional areas. 

A joint management committee, representing the iSimangaliso 
Authority and Ezemvelo KZN Wildlife, addresses Park-
management matters.

Remuneration

The iSimangaliso Authority is a total-cost-to-company employer. 
It is not subject to Public Service scales, and remunerates 
its employees in accordance with the prevailing dictates of 
the market. Remuneration for board members and board 
committees is regulated by directives from National Treasury. 
Disclosure of remuneration to managers, as required by 
Treasury, is made in note 14 to the Annual Financial Statements. 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Fish traps, Kosi Bay



Principal activities

The principal activities of iSimangaliso are structured around 
three main thrusts: conservation, delivery of economic benefits 
to local communities and tourism development. This year’s 
highlights included:  
•	 The	introduction	of	lion	and	serval	into	the	iSimangaliso	

Wetland Park
•	 The	training	of	1	137	people,	the	creation	of	1	514	direct	

temporary jobs and 23 direct permanent jobs
•	 The	participation	of	174	small	businesses	in	the	

iSimangaliso Enterprise Support Programme
•	 The	award	of	10	new	bursaries	and	the	continued	support	

to 37 university students through the iSimangaliso Higher 
Education Access Programme

•	 An	8%	increase	in	Park	revenue	and	consequently	an	
increase in revenue share to land claims trusts

•	 The	opening	of	the	Western	Shores	section	of	the	Park		
  
Review of operations and financial position 

Accounting revenue for the year increased by 8,7%, from 
R79,3m in 2013 to R86,2m; due mainly to an increase in 
project-related grants of R8,0m and park revenue of R1,0m, 
partly offset by a decrease in other revenue of R2,1m –  
principally administration fees recovered from programmes. 

Expenditure increased by 20,2%, from R89,0m to R107,0m in 
the current year. The major contributors to the net increase of 
R18,0m were project costs (R5,7m), net personnel costs – 
ie after recoveries from projects – (R3,8m), depreciation 
(R2,9m) and other costs – mainly chemicals and equipment 
and security related to boundary integrity (R6,7m). 

The year’s deficit was R20,8m, compared to a deficit of R9,7m 
in the previous year. This is a non-cash loss in as much as 
it is after charging depreciation (R21,3m) and writing-off 
the balance of the amount due to iSimangaliso by Sanyati 
(R6,1m).

Sanyati was contracted by iSimangaliso to construct day-
visitor facilities in the Park. In terms of the contract, Sanyati 
committed to certain labour targets, which it did not achieve. 
Consequently iSimangaliso levied penalties on Sanyati in 
terms of the contract of R11,9m. In mid-2012 Sanyati began 
liquidation proceedings. At the time, it was management’s 
view that some of the debt may be recovered, and only R5,9m 
was therefore written off. Management has revised its view 
following developments in the current financial year and has 
now written off the balance of R6.1m (refer note 18 in the 
Annual Financial Statements). 

In cash terms, R157,6m of grants and other revenue were 
received in 2014; R30,2m more than the R127,4m received in 
the preceding year. Interest received increased by R0,2m in 
2014. Disbursements to suppliers and employees decreased, 
from R70,5m in 2013 to R77,2m in 2014. Capital expenditure 
in 2014 was R5,1m compared with R10,1m in 2013.

In overall terms, cash and cash-equivalents increased by 
R76,0m, from R86,6m in 2013 to R162,6m in 2014.

Property, plant and equipment decreased by R16,3m during 
the year to R364,0m, mainly as a result of depreciation. 

Overall, total net assets also decreased from R392,3m in 2013 
to R371,4m in 2014.

Materiality and significance framework

A materiality and significance framework has been developed 
as a benchmark against which to report losses through 
criminal conduct and irregular, fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure as envisaged in section 54(2) of the PFMA. The 
framework was reviewed by the external auditors. 

Commercialisation

The iSimangaliso Authority has a commercialisation strategy 
which includes the improvement of existing public-access 
facilities and the tendering of tourist-accommodation and 
tourism-activity operations to private parties. Typically the 
accommodation facilities fall within the scope of the PPP 
provisions under the PFMA, but this is not always the case. 
As far as possible, the iSimangaliso Authority aims to transfer 
operating, infrastructure and environmental risk to the private 
party on all such projects and secure value for money for 
itself. Value for money may include, amongst other things, 
financial return, empowerment and affordable public access.  

Events subsequent to the reporting date

There are no significant events subsequent to the reporting 
date.

Andrew Zaloumis
CEO and Accounting Authority
31 July 2014
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1. Basis of preparation

1.1 The annual financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practices (GRAP) including any 
interpretations, guidelines, and directives issued by 
the Accounting Standards Board.    
  

1.2 The Cash Flow Statement is prepared using the 
direct method.     

1.3 Specific information such as receivables from 
non-exchange transactions (including taxes and 
transfers), taxes and transfers payable,  and trade 
and other payables from non-exchange transactions, 
are presented separately on the Statement of 
Financial Position.     
 

1.4 Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses have not 
been offset, except where it is required or permitted 
by a Standard of GRAP.     
 

1.5 The amount and nature of any restrictions on cash 
balances are disclosed in note 4 only in instances 
where there are restrictions.    
 

1.6 The financial statements have been prepared on 
the historical-cost basis. There are no fair-value 
adjustments.

     
1.7 The Authority’s continuing operations are reliant on 

the ongoing financial support of government. These 
financial statements are prepared on the going-
concern assumption which, amongst other things, 
implies that government will continue to provide 
iSimangaliso with adequate grants.   
  

 The principal accounting policies adopted in the 
preparation of these financial statements are set out below 
and are, in all material respects, consistent with those of 
the previous year, except as otherwise indicated.   
    

2. Currency      

These financial statements are presented in South African 
rand, which is the currency in which the majority of the 
entity’s transactions are denominated.   
   

3. Revenue recognition

 Revenue comprises revenue from exchange and 
non-exchange transactions. Exchange transactions 
involve the receipt of assets or services, or extinguishment 
of liabilities in exchange for which the Authority renders 
services, sells goods, or permits the use of an Authority 
asset. Non-exchange transactions involve the receipt 
of value by the Authority without the Authority giving 
approximate equal value in return.

Fish caught in fish trap, Kosi Bay

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

3.1 Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions 
3.1.1 Grants and other donor income

Conditional government grants and other donor funding are recognised as 
revenue:       
- In the period in which the revenue is receivable when the grants are not 

subject to restrictions or conditions    
- In the period in which the revenue is receivable when the grants are subject 

to restrictions but not subject to conditions   
- Incrementally against expenditure when the unspent portions of the grants 

must be refunded if the grant conditions are not met. A liability is raised in 
respect of the grant    

- On project completion when the  grants must be refunded in full if the grant 
conditions are not met. A liability is raised in respect of the grant 
 

3.1.2 Interest earned on grant income    
Interest earned on grant monies received is reflected as “amounts owing to 
donors” in cases where specific permission is required from the donor before 
it can be expended on project activities. When approval is granted, interest 
earned is transferred to conditional grants and recognised as revenue in 
accordance with the principles set out in the paragraphs above.  
 

3.2 Revenue from Exchange Transactions     
3.2.1 Park revenue    

Park revenue comprises inter alia fees for tourism activities operated for gain 
by private parties in the Park, gate-entrance fees, and events and filming. Park 
revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 
the Authority and when the revenue can be reliably measured.   
 

3.2.2 Administration fees    
Administration fees from the management of projects are recognised on a 
straight-line basis over the specific period in which the service is rendered. 
   

3.2.3 Interest (other than grant-related interest)    
Interest is recognised when it accrues using the effective-interest-rate method. 
   

      

3.2.4 Bid and tender fees    
Bid and tender fees are recognised when they accrue.   
 

3.2.5 Income received in advance    
Fees for commercial activities (refer 3.2.1) are due in advance. Invoices are 
raised in respect of such fees in the last week of the preceding month in cases 
where there is a regular monthly charge and in advance of an ad hoc activity. 
The fees are recognised as income in advance and transferred to income 
received on the first day of the month.

4. Irregular, unauthorised, fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of, or not in accordance 
with a requirement of any applicable legislation.  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure refers 
to expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care 
been exercised. Irregular, unauthorised or fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised 
against the specific class of events to which it relates and, if and when incurred, is 
disclosed in a note to the financial statements when it has been identified.   
 

5. Property, plant and equipment      

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost or, in the case of assets taken 
over from other public entities, at estimated replacement value, which is fair value less 
depreciation, adjusted for any impairments on initial recognition, and thereafter at cost.  
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost of each asset to 
its estimated residual value over its estimated useful life as follows:   
   
Buildings and structures 30 years except for park homes    
     depreciated over 10 years 
Roads and bridges  20 years  
Fences    15 years  
Dams, reservoirs and boreholes 15 years  
Motor and other vehicles 5 years  
Computer equipment  3 years  
Office equipment  3 years  
Furniture and fittings  10 years  
Operating equipment 2 years  
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Expenditure on major improvements and additions to tangible property, plant and 
equipment is capitalised on the basis of measured work completed. Incomplete 
construction projects are shown at cost of materials and other direct costs.   
   
Land, over which the Authority has custodial rights and responsibilities, belongs to the state 
or other entities. No value is therefore ascribed to it in the financial statements.  
    
The depreciation charge is based on the componentisation approach where appropriate.  
Where the assessment of useful life is the same, or the cost component is not a significant 
proportion of total cost, assets are not componentised.     
 
The useful lives of property, plant and equipment and their residual values are reassessed 
at the end of each financial year. Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its 
estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount (ie 
impairment losses are recognised).       
       
Assets are derecognised when no future economic benefits or service potential can be 
derived from them. The gains or losses (ie the difference between any proceeds and the 
asset’s carrying value) is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.    
    

6. Intangible assets      

Intangible assets are stated at cost at recognition and thereafter at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on the 
straight-line method to write off the cost of each asset to its estimated residual value over its 
estimated useful life of three years.      
      
Management exercises its judgement when classifying intangible assets by taking into 
consideration whether or not these are integral to the hardware or machinery with which 
they are associated.      
      
Expenditure is capitalised until the asset is used as originally intended, whereafter all 
marketing-related expenditure is expensed.      
 
Assets are derecognised when they are disposed of or there are no future economic 
benefits or service potential to be derived from them. The gains or losses (ie the difference 
between any proceeds and the asset’s carrying value) are recognised in the Statement of 

Financial Performance.

7. Investment property      

The Authority holds investment property in order to generate fees. It grants use-rights to 
third parties through private-public-partnership (PPP) agreements. Typically these PPPs 
transfer operational and business risk to the third party. The third party is required to insure 
and maintain the underlying assets and pay a PPP fee to the Authority for the use-rights. 
     
With the exception of three properties, the properties are all managed by Ezemvelo KZN 
Wildlife, directly or through subcontractors. The Authority does not charge Ezemvelo KZN 
Wildlife a PPP fee.
      
Investment property is stated at historical cost at recognition, as fair value cannot be 
reliably determined because there are no comparable market transactions, and thereafter 
at cost. The willing-buyer-willing-seller principle cannot be applied because of restrictions 
emanating from the World Heritage Convention Act. Nor is it possible to provide a range of 
estimates within which fair values may lie.       
       
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost of each asset to 
its estimated residual value over its estimated useful life, which is taken to be 30 years.  
    
Transfers to and from investment property are made when there is a change in use. 
Investment properties are derecognised when they are permanently withdrawn from use. 
Gains or losses arising from derecognition are recognised in the Statement of Financial 
Performance.       
       
The Authority maintains a register of investment property.     
  

8. Impairments      

8.1 Impairment of Non-Cash-Generating Assets    
The Authority assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired 
at each reporting date. If any such indication exists, the Authority estimates the 
recoverable amount of the individual asset or, where this is not possible, it assesses 
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.  
   
The recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value 
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in use. If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount an 
impairment loss is recognised.     

The Authority also assesses, at each reporting date, impairment losses recognised 
in prior periods. Where the impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased, 
the Authority estimates the recoverable amount. A reversal of the impairment loss 
is recognised where the revised carrying amount (ie the carrying amount after the 
impairment loss is reversed) is higher than what the carrying amount would have been 
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior periods. 

8.2 Impairment of Cash-Generating Assets     
The Authority assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired 
at each reporting date. If any such indication exists, the Authority estimates the 
recoverable service amount of the asset or, where this is not possible, the recoverable 
service amount of the non-cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.  
   
The recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash generating asset’s fair 
value less costs to sell and its value in use. The value in use for a non-cash generating 
asset is the present value of the asset’s remaining service potential.   
  
If the recoverable service amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, an 
impairment loss is recognised.     

The Authority also assesses, at each reporting date, impairment losses recognised 
in prior periods. Where the impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased, 
the Authority estimates the recoverable service amount. A reversal of the impairment 
loss is recognised when the revised carrying amount (ie the carrying amount after 
the impairment loss is reversed) is higher than what the carrying amount would have 
been had no impairment loss been recognised in prior periods. Any reversal of an 
impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation increase.  
   

9. Leases      

The Authority has no financial leases. Lease payments in respect of its operating leases are 
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  
 

10. Financial instruments      

10.1 Recognition     
Financial instruments are recognised on the Statement of Financial Position when 
the Authority becomes a party to a contract which gives rise to a financial asset or 
financial liability.      
       

10.2 Financial assets     
10.2.1 Measurement    

Financial assets are measured initially at fair value and thereafter at amortised 
cost less any adjustments for impairments. Fair value is deemed to be the 
nominal value or transaction proceeds. Amortised cost is deemed to be the 
nominal value except in instances where the difference between the carrying 
value and the net present value is material. In such instances the amortised 
cost is determined by adjusting the nominal value using the effective-interest 
method.  

10.2.2 Impairment    
At each reporting date management assesses whether there is any objective 
evidence of impairment of a financial asset. Such evidence would include 
financial difficulty of the debtor, non-payment, or the probability of the debtor’s 
bankruptcy. The carrying amount is reduced in instances where it is material. 
   

10.2.3 Derecognition    
Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual right to the asset has 
expired.    
      

10.2.4 Categories of financial assets      
The principal financial assets are loans and receivables. These are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments. They comprise: 
10.2.4.1 Cash and cash equivalents      

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits in 
the Authority’s name with First National Bank.    
 

10.2.4.2 Receivables    
Receivables include trade debtors, project advances, deposits and 
conditional grants. The receivables, other than deposits, are short-
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term in nature. Deposits are discounted only in instances where the 
effect is material. 

10.3 Financial liabilities     
Financial liabilities are recognised when the transaction is entered into. The Authority’s 
financial liabilities comprise trade creditors, accrued expenses, amounts owing to 
donors, project advances, accruals, retentions, amounts owing to SARS and non-
interest-bearing deposits from concessionaires and licencees.  Amounts owing to 
donors comprise interest earned on grant funding for which permission must be 
obtained for disbursement on the related project costs, whereupon the amounts are 
transferred to conditional grants.      
10.3.1 Measurement    

Financial liabilities are measured initially at fair value and thereafter at amortised 
cost less any adjustments for impairments. Fair value is deemed to be the 
nominal value or transaction proceeds. Amortised cost is deemed to be the 
nominal value except in instances where the difference between the carrying 
value and the net present value is material. In such instances the amortised 
cost is determined by adjusting the nominal value using the effective-interest 
method.     

      
10.3.2 Derecognition    

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the contractual obligation has been 
discharged, cancelled or expired.    

      
10.3.3 Categories of financial liabilities  

The principal financial liabilities are payables and inter-company loans. These 
are contractual obligations in respect of goods or services. They comprise: 
10.3.3.1 Payables    

Payables include trade creditors, accruals, amounts owing to donors, 
retentions, levies payable, concessionaire’s performance bonds 
and deposits on staff housing. The payables, other than retentions, 
concessionaires’ performance bonds and deposits, are short-term 
in nature. Retentions and deposits are discounted only in instances 
where the effect is material. 

10.4 Risk associated with financial instruments    
10.4.1 Credit risk    

The Authority’s trade debtors are other government agencies and private-
sector entities, primarily licencees and concessionaires. In respect of the 
private sector, the Authority vets the financial strength of the private party prior 
to contracting with it. After a contract is entered into, the Authority secures 
performance bonds or deposits of not less than two months’ fees as collateral. 
Fees are payable in advance. Non-payment results in immediate suspension of 
use-rights. No collateral is held in respect of government debt.

Debtors past due amount to:   
 Total due Of which, Government

120 days 570 866  397 333 69.6%
90 days 1 378  -  0%
60 days 9 687  -  0%
30 days 59 028  43 558  73.8%

The risk associated with the outstanding government debtors is considered 

low.    

 

10.4.2 Liquidity risk    
 The Authority has sufficient funds to service its financial liabilities.  

  

10.4.3 Currency risk    

 From time to time the iSimangaliso Authority receives foreign grants. Its policy 

is to pass the foreign-exchange risk onto the donor.   

  

11. Inventory      

Inventory is held for the delivery of services and includes such items as chemicals for alien-
plant clearing and land rehabilitation, stationery and promotional (merchandising) materials. 
Inventories are initially recognised at cost. Cost generally refers to the purchase price, plus 
taxes, transport costs and any other costs in bringing the inventories to their current location 
and condition. Where inventory is acquired by the Authority for no or nominal consideration 
(ie a non-exchange transaction), the cost is deemed to be equal to the fair value of the item 
on the date acquired.
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Consumable stores, raw materials, work-in-progress (excluding that relating to construction 
projects) and finished goods are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after 
initial recognition. In general, the basis of determining cost is the specific identification 
of costs. If inventories are to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge they are 
valued at the lower of cost and current replacement cost after initial recognition. The FIFO 
method is applied. 

Redundant inventories are identified and written down from cost to net realisable value.  

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less 

applicable variable selling expenses. The write-down is recognised in the Statement of 

Financial Performance in the year in which it arises.      

 

The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories arising from an increase in net 

realisable value or current replacement cost, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of 

inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.   

    

The carrying amount of inventories is recognised as an expense in the period that 

the inventory was distributed, written off or consumed, unless that cost qualifies for 

capitalisation to the cost of another asset.     

 

12. Critical accounting estimates and judgements    

The Authority makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 

assets and liabilities. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based 

on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are 

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Examples of such estimates involve 

items such as accrued expenses, provisions and the useful lives of property, plant and 

equipment.      

      

13. Standards and interpretations issued but not yet adopted by the Authority 

There are standards and interpretations in issue that are not yet effective. The initial 

application of these is not expected to have any material impact on the financial position 

of iSimangaliso.

     

The following statements have been approved by the Minister of Finance, although their 

effective dates have not yet been announced:     

 

GRAP 18  Segment reporting    
GRAP 20  Related Party Disclosures    
GRAP 32  Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor   
GRAP 105  Transfers between entities under common control   
GRAP 106  Transfers between entities not under common control   
GRAP 107  Mergers
GRAP 108  Statutory Receivables

14. Employee benefits      

The Authority is a total-cost-to-company employer. It does not offer any retirement or 

post-retirement benefits. Short-term benefits include salaries, short-term-compensated 

absences and medical aid. The liability and expense are recognised when the employee 

has rendered the services that entitle him or her to the benefits. Leave pay and medical 

aid are provided for as follows:      

14.1 Leave pay     
The Authority provides for estimated leave pay in full, based on the total days’ leave 

accruing to employees at their respective total cost of employment.   

  

14.2 Medical Aid     
Medical aid is mandatory for all staff and is included in the total cost of employment. 

    

14.3 Study Loans     

The Authority provides study loans to staff. These are converted to grants on 

successful completion of each year of study and provided that the staff member 

concerned does not resign within a year of completion of the particular year of study. 

    

15. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Authority has a present legal or constructive 

obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be 

required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. 

     

Future events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in 

the amount of a provision where there is sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. 

Gains from the expected disposal of assets are not taken into account in measuring a 

provision. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. The present obligation 

under an onerous contract is recognised and measured as a provision. An onerous 
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contract is a contract in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the 

contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The unavoidable 

costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the 

lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to 

fulfil it. This unavoidable cost resulting from the contract is the amount of the provision to 

be recognised.

Provisions are reviewed at reporting date. The amount of a provision is the present value 

of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation. When the effect of 

discounting is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future 

cash flows that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money. The impact 

of the periodic unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Financial 

Performance as a finance cost as it occurs.     

 

16  Heritage Assets      

The iSimangaliso Wetland Park was the first South African World Heritage site to be listed 

by UNESCO. The Park was listed on the basis of its superlative natural beauty, biodiversity 

and threatened species and ecological processes. The Park is 358 534 hectares including 

5 ecosystems, viz marine, coastal dune, lake, swamps, and dry savannah woodlands, 

thickets and sand forest. The Park also includes 4 RAMSAR sites.   

   

17  Biological Assets      

The iSimangaliso Authority is responsible for managing a wide range of fauna, flora, 

geological structures and unique scenery. Since the iSimangaliso Authority does not 

control conditions affecting the progeny or quantity of any species, and since its main line 

of business does not include trade in these assets, it does not account for any biological 

assets.       

       

18  Taxation      

No provision is made for taxation as the Authority is exempt from income tax. It also does 

not charge value-added tax as it is precluded from doing so by statute.   

   

19. Risk management      

The Authority transfers risk to third parties in instances where use-rights are conferred 

on these parties. It imposes an obligation on all such third parties to adequately insure 

buildings and structures allocated for their use. The remaining risk, which the Authority 

carries itself, is within Authority’s ability to manage.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 31 MARCH 2014

    
 Notes 2013/14 2012/13
  R R
ASSETS    
Non-current assets  364 046 168  380 302 604  
Property, plant and equipment 1    270 661 386  282 468 274  
Intangible assets 2  2 468  5 039  
Investment property 3    93 382 314  97 829 291  
    
Current assets   164 671 509  89 773 823  
Cash and cash-equivalents 4    162 607 852  86 626 210  
Receivables 5    1 852 226  2 858 487  
Inventories 6   211 432  289 127  
    
Total assets    528 717 677  470 076 427  
    
LIABILITIES    
Current liabilities   157 270 067  77 815 935  
Payables 7   27 006 892  16 783 025  
Conditional grants 8    129 979 148  60 755 943  
Income received in advance 9    284 027  276 967  

Total liabilities   157 270 067  77 815 935  

Net assets    371 447 610  392 260 492  
    
NET ASSETS    
Value of assets taken over   265 740 150  265 740 150  
Accumulated surplus   105 707 460  126 520 342  

Total net assets   371 447 610  392 260 492  
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 Notes 2013/14 2012/13

  R R

REVENUE   86 201 906   79 310 760 

Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions  73 152 216 67 277 302

-  Grants  71 556 003 63 595 040

-  Management Fees  777 331 853 134

-  Administration Fees  788 883 2 755 047

-  Donations  10 000  49 080

-  Penalties  20 000 25 000

Revenue from Exchange Transactions  13 049 689 12 033 458

-  Interest income  674 861 464 707

-  Park revenue  11 901 839 10 994 833

-  Other income  472 989 573 917

    

EXPENDITURE    107 014 787   89 035 761 

Co-management agreement payments   861 864  772 298 

Project costs  27 644 823    21 986 411 

Depreciation 

-  Property, plant and equipment 1    16 902 382   14 820 838 

-  Intangible assets 2    2 571   2 734  

-  Investment property 3 4 438 744 3 690 378

Professional fees   4 615 878   5 194 221 

Bad debts written off 18    6 079 009   5 900 736 

Profit on disposal of fixed assets

-  Property, plant and equipment   47 330   815 704 

-  Investment property   8 234   - 

Other operating expenses   33 422 042   26 678 139  

    

DEFICIT FOR YEAR  (20 812 881) (9 725 001)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

   

 Notes 2013/14 2012/13

  R R

VALUE OF ASSETS TAKEN OVER    

Balance at beginning of year   265 740 150   265 740 150 

Balance at end of year   265 740 150   265 740 150  

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)    

Balance at beginning of year   126 520 342   136 245 342 

Surplus/(deficit) for the year

-  Deficit for the year  (20 812 881) (9 725 001)

Balance at end of year   105 707 460   126 520 342 

TOTAL CHANGE IN NET ASSETS    

Balance at beginning of year   392 260 492   401 985 493  

Deficit for the year  (20 812 881) (9 725 001)

Balance at end of year   371 447 610   392 260 492 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

   

 Notes 2013/14 2012/13

  R R

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES    

Cash grants and other revenue received   157 603 203   127 358 058  

Cash paid to suppliers and employees  (77 153 598) (70 507 146)

Cash generated from/(utilised in) operations    80 449 605   56 850 912 

Interest received   674 861   464 707 

 11   81 124 466   57 315 620 

 

NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES    

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  (5 142 825) (8 683 427)

Acquisition of intangible assets   -  (4 041)

Acquisition of investment property  - (1 436 496)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH-EQUIVALENTS   75 981 641   47 191 657 

  

CASH AND CASH-EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR   86 626 210   39 434 553   

 

CASH AND CASH-EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 4  162 607 852   86 626 210  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

        Accumulated   Accumulated

  Carrying value Cost at  Transfers   depreciation   depreciation Carrying 

  at beginning beginning Additions in (out)  Disposals Cost at at beginning Depreciation Depreciation at end value at Proceeds

  of year of year during year during year during year end of year of year for year written back of year end of year on disposals

  R R R R R R R R R R R R

1. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2013/14

Buildings and structures  97 524 135   115 004 078   -   4 807 984   40 793   119 771 269   17 479 943   3 967 691   6 459   21 441 176   98 330 093   - 

Roads and bridges   112 829 531   152 241 027  -  3 761 862  -  156 002 888   39 411 496   7 613 588  -  47 025 083   108 977 805   -

Fences   26 437 225   47 902 523   -  - -   47 902 523   21 465 298   3 279 251  -   24 744 549   23 157 974   - 

Dams, reservoirs and boreholes   12 455 855   15 807 090   - -  -   15 807 090   3 351 235   1 053 799  -   4 405 035   11 402 056   -

Motor and other vehicles  641 585   1 108 173   -  -  -   1 108 173   466 588   189 357   -   655 945   452 228   -

Computer equipment   95 100   795 651   36 643  -  75 462   756 832   700 551   46 287   62 473   684 365   72 467    - 

Office equipment  9 280   86 121   -  -  10 659   75 462   76 841   5 286   10 656   71 471   3 991   -

Furniture and fittings  304 070   593 838   -  - -  593 838   289 768   52 420  -  342 188   251 650  -

Operating equipment  976 696   2 758 182   946 382   1 549 532   21 849   5 232 247   1 781 486   694 703   21 844   2 454 345   2 777 902    -

Capital work in progress   31 194 797   31 194 797   4 159 801  (10 119 377) -  25 235 221  - - - -  25 235 221  -

  282 468 274   367 491 480   5 142 825  -   148 762   372 485 543   85 023 206   16 902 382   101 432   101 824 157   270 661 386   -
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        Accumulated   Accumulated

  Carrying value Cost at  Transfers   depreciation   depreciation Carrying 

  at beginning beginning Additions in (out)  Disposals Cost at at beginning Depreciation Depreciation at end value at Proceeds

  of year of year during year during year during year end of year of year for year written back of year end of year on disposals

  R R R R R R R R R R R R

1. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont.)

2012/13

Buildings and structures   84 763 649   99 040 182   -   16 658 143   694 247   115 004 078   14 276 533   3 274 796   71 387   17 479 943   97 524 135    - 

Roads and bridges  96 755 826   129 681 699   -   22 559 328   -   152 241 027   32 925 873   6 485 622   -   39 411 496   112 829 531    - 

Fences  29 911 348   48 202 351  -  -   299 829   47 902 523   18 291 004   3 280 917   106 623   21 465 298   26 437 225    - 

Dams, reservoirs and boreholes  13 509 654   15 807 090  -   -   -   15 807 090   2 297 436   1 053 799   -   3 351 235   12 455 855   - 

Motor and other vehicles  314 439   600 138   508 035  -  -   1 108 173   285 699   180 889   -   466 588   641 585    - 

Computer equipment   48 143   716 712   91 020   -  12 081   795 651   668 569   43 961   11 979   700 551   95 100   - 

Office equipment   9 829   81 091   5 030   -  -   86 121   71 261   5 580   -   76 841   9 280   -

Furniture and fittings  333 663   565 746   28 093   -   -   593 838   232 083   57 685   -   289 768   304 070  - 

Operating equipment  469 580   1 814 892   64 287   880 453   1 450   2 758 182   1 345 313   437 622   1 449   1 781 486   976 696   500  

Capital work in progress  84 331 685   84 331 685   7 987 462  (61 124 349) -   31 194 797   -   -   -   -   31 194 797   - 

  310 447 815   380 841 586   8 683 926  (21 026 426)  1 007 606   367 491 480   70 393 771   14 820 872   191 437   85 023 207   282 468 274   500 

   

  2013/14 2012/13

  R R

Cost of property, plant and equipment 

fully depreciated but still in use:     

 

Motor and other vehicles  161 387   161 387 

Computer equipment  649 493   613 538 

Office equipment  59 602   70 261 

Furniture and fittings 100 229  13 479 

Operating equipment  1 791 593   1 624 453 

  2 762 304   2 483 118 
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        Accumulated   Accumulated  

  Carrying value Cost at  Transfers   amortisation   amortisation Carrying 

  at beginning beginning Additions in (out)  Disposals Cost at at beginning Amortisation Amortisation at end value at Proceeds

  of year of year during year during year during year end of year of year for year written back of year end of year on disposals

  R R R R R R R R R R R R

2. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

2013/14:             

Website   1 392   88 342   -  - -  88 342   86 950   1 225  -  88 174   167   -

Computer software   3 647   199 584  -  - -  199 584   195 937   1 346  -  197 283   2 301   -

   5 039   287 926  -   -   -   287 926   282 887   2 571  -   285 458   2 468  -   

            

2012/13:            

Website  3 678  88 342  -  - -  88 342  84 664   2 286   -   86 950   1 392   - 

Computer software   55  195 543   4 041  - -  199 584  195 488   449  -  195 937   3 647   -

 

  3 733   283 885   4 041   -   -   287 926   280 152   2 734   -   282 887   5 039    - 

             

 

 2013/14 2012/13

 R R

Cost of intangibles fully 

depreciated but still in use:         

Computer software  195 543    195 543          

 

  195 543   195 543           
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   Accumulated       

  Cost at depreciation  Carrying value  Transfers Disposals   Carrying 

  beginning at beginning  at beginning Additions in (out) during Depreciation Depreciation value at Proceeds

  of year of year of year during year during year the year for year written back end of year on disposals

  R R R R R R R R R R

3. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 

2013/14

Cape Vidal tourist accommodation  36 112 876   5 904 034   30 208 842  - - -  1 203 797  -  29 005 045   -

Charters Creek tourist accommodation  5 849 591   1 397 030   4 452 561  - - -  194 990  -  4 257 571   -

Eastern Shores hiking trails facility  996 000   362 328   633 672  - - -  33 205  -  600 467   -

False Bay tourist accommodation   1 007 000   366 434   640 566  - - -  33 566  -  607 000   -

Fanies Island tourist accommodation  5 966 343   1 731 677   4 234 666  - - -  198 883  -  4 035 783  -

Kosi Bay tourist accommodation  6 879 000   2 503 107   4 375 893  - -  13 000   228 902   4 766   4 138 758   -

Mabibi tourist accommodation   7 582 856   2 229 056   5 353 800  - - -  251 631  -  5 102 169   -

Manzengwenya tourist accommodation  7 610 821   1 268 251   6 342 570  - - -  253 703  -  6 088 867   -

Maphelane tourist accommodation   4 490 000   1 633 856   2 856 144  - - -  149 665  -  2 706 479   -

Rocktail Bay tourist accommodation  1 680 782   592 362   1 088 420  - - -  56 119  -  1 032 301   -

Sodwana Bay tourist accommodation   37 925 030   11 922 046   26 002 983  - - -  1 264 146  -  24 738 838  -

St Lucia Estuary camp sites   7 236 843   2 132 679   5 104 164  - - -  241 253  -  4 862 911   -

uMkhuze tourist accommodation  9 866 526   3 331 518   6 535 008  - - -  328 883  -  6 206 125  -

 

  133 203 670   35 374 379   97 829 291   -   -   13 000   4 438 744   4 766   93 382 314   - 
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   Accumulated       

  Cost at depreciation  Carrying value  Transfers Disposals   Carrying 

  beginning at beginning  at beginning Additions in (out) during Depreciation Depreciation value at Proceeds

  of year of year of year during year during year the year for year written back end of year on disposals

  R R R R R R R R R R

3. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 

2012/13

Cape Vidal tourist accommodation  17 711 731   5 313 609   12 398 122   375 543   18 025 602  -  590 426  -  30 208 842  -

Charters Creek tourist accommodation   3 839 504   1 269 042   2 570 461   608 258   1 401 830  -  127 988  -  4 452 561   -

Eastern Shores hiking trails facility  996 000   329 123   666 877  -  -  -  33 205  -  633 672  -

False Bay tourist accommodation  1 007 000   332 868   674 132  -  -  -  33 566  -  640 566   -

Fanies Island tourist accommodation  5 966 343   1 532 794   4 433 549  -  -  -  198 883  -  4 234 666   -

Kosi Bay tourist accommodation   6 879 000   2 273 808   4 605 192  -  -  -  229 299  -  4 375 893   -

Mabibi tourist accommodation   7 558 000   1 978 253   5 579 747   -   24 856  -  250 803  -  5 353 800   -

Manzengwenya tourist accommodation  7 610 821   1 014 549   6 596 273  -  -  -  253 703  -  6 342 570   -

Maphelane tourist accommodation  4 490 000   1 484 190   3 005 810  -  -  -  149 665  -  2 856 144   -

Rocktail Bay tourist accommodation  1 680 782   536 243   1 144 539  -  -  -  56 119  -  1 088 420   -

Sodwana Bay tourist accommodation   36 350 892   10 710 372   25 640 520   -   1 574 138  -  1 211 674  -  26 002 983   -

St Lucia Estuary camp sites  7 236 843   1 891 426   5 345 417  -  -  -  241 253  -  5 104 164   -

uMkhuze tourist accommodation  9 413 832   3 017 725   6 396 106   452 694   -  -  313 793  -  6 535 008   -

   110 740 748   31 684 001   79 056 747   1 436 496   21 026 426  -   3 690 378   -   97 829 291   -  
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  2013/14 2012/13

  R R

3. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (cont.)

Rental income from investment property   1 243 826   1 309 293   

Direct operating expenses from investment property that   

-  Generated income   -   -  

-  Did not generate income   -  - 

 

Direct operating expenses include only expenses such as maintenance, repairs 

or other costs incurred on behalf of the operators of the properties.    

  

Restrictions on realisability of investment property 

-  Property cannot be alienated without permission of the Minister of 

 Environmental Affairs   

    

Contractual obligations to purchase, construct repair or enhance investment property  None None

4. CASH AND CASH-EQUIVALENTS

Bank accounts    162 604 673   86 625 797 

Petty cash    3 179   413  

    162 607 852   86 626 210  

5.  RECEIVABLES

Trade debtors    1 592 569   1 984 828 

Prepaid expenses    96 458   89 897 

Deposits   92 993   87 084  

SARS   70 205   70 205 

Conditional grants receivable   -   626 472 

    1 852 226   2 858 487 
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 2013/14 2012/13 

 Carrying amount Amount expensed Carrying amount Amount expensed

 R R R R

   

6. INVENTORIES 

Chemicals, protective clothing and equipment  140 347   967 159   185 488   746 499  

Promotional materials   52 388   44 605   82 469   138 700  

Stationery   18 696   38 211   21 169   41 963  

  211 432   1 049 975   289 127   927 162 

  

 2013/14 2012/13

 R R

7. PAYABLES    

Trade creditors  12 977 558   7 049 284  

Accrued expenses   2 967 441   2 150 727   

Amounts owing to donors   4 736 107   3 141 630   

Retentions   1 040 684   736 041   

Levies payable  4 180 613   2 839 847   

Deposits on staff housing   20 546   16 376   

Concessionaires’ performance bonds  1 081 807   849 121   

   27 006 892   16 783 025   
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  2013/14 2012/13

  R R

8. CONDITIONAL GRANTS   

Reference should be made to policy 3.1.     

DEA Infrastructure   -  294 312 

Maputaland infrastructure (funded by DEA)  -  295 673  

Signage  -  66 748 

Mseleni market (funded by the KZN Dept of Local Government)  -  1 554 486  

Working for water (funded by DWA)  84 046  463 087  

Lubombo route (development of tourism route through Mozambique, Swaziland    

and South Africa; funded by the KZN Dept of Local Government)  1 230 622  1 230 622  

Swamp forest rehabilitation programme (funded by DEA)  -  1 850 

Enterprise development programme (funded by DEA)  -  54 368 

IP Infrastructure programme (funded by DEA)  1 404 722  3 873 752 

Corridor funding (funded by the KZN Dept of Local Government)  391 772  554 732 

Art programme (funded by MTN)  12 136  12 136 

GEF grant (funded by GEF)  7 965 906  2 851 748 

Tourism infrastructure development (funded by DEA)  139 152  140 020 

Coastcare programme (funded by DEA)  1 284 790  448 086 

Craft and environmental education (funded by National lottery)  232 705  - 

IP infrastructure (funded by DEA)  4 451 349  6 089 186   

MLRF programme (funded by DEA)  526 302  484 179 

Working for wetlands (funded by SANBI)  286 818  -

Infrastucture development “12/15” (funded by DEA)  111 968 828  42 340 958 

   129 979 148   60 755 943 
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  2013/14 2012/13

  R R

8. CONDITIONAL GRANTS (cont.)   

GEF Project:    

The Authority has been awarded a grant by GEF for, inter alia, hydrological studies 

and capacity building of local communities. On 24 March 2010, a contract was 

concluded with the World Bank, the administrators of the grant.    

Since the inception of the project, contracts totalling R30 710 855 (2012/13:

R28 103 473) have been awarded, in accordance with World Bank procurement policies   2 607 382   19 422 625 

 

Expenditure since inception totals R25 422 910 (2012/2013: R15 184 368) of which:   

-  Component 1 - Hydrology of Lake St Lucia    4 357 178   2 383 857 

-  Component 2 - Improvement of livelihood and employment opportunities 

                            for communities   5 158 403   5 396 703  

-  Component 3 - Institutional strengthening and support    722 693   382 826  

 

   10 238 274   8 163 386 

 

The Authority has provided co-funding in the amount of R213 180 724  

(2012/13: R174 025 297), of which R39 155 427 (2012/13: R29 048 361) was spent  

in the year under review. 

National Lottery Projects:   

The Authority has been awarded a grant by the National Lotteries Board for Youth 

Environmental Education, Art Skills, and Craft Skills. The contract was concluded 

on 15 July 2010.   

Contracts totalling R4 108 437 (2012/13: R3 369 900) have been awarded. 

   

Expenditure for the year was as follows:

-  Youth Environmental Education  (64 848) -

-  Art Skills  827  394 687  

-  Craft Skills  266 064  91 190 

  

  202 043  485 877 
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  2013/14 2012/13

  R R

9. INCOME RECEIVED IN ADVANCE   

Fees received in advance    284 027   276 967 

 

   284 027   276 967 

    

10. DEFICIT FOR YEAR   

The operating deficit is calculated after taking into account the following items:  

Income 

-  Transfer from grants to match related expenditure incurred during year   71 556 003   63 595 040 

Expenses 

-  Audit fees - external    1 164 978   852 142 

-  Audit fees - internal    261 945   295 129 

-  Depreciation     21 343 697   18 513 950 

-  Equipment rental    98 775   105 495 

-  Profit on scrapping of fixed asset    55 564   815 704  

 

Equipment rental comprises payments made for operating leases of 

photocopiers and telephone PABX systems. The remaining period in respect of 

the PABX is 12 months, and in respect of the photocopiers, 3 months.  

The future rental commitments are:   

-  Payable during next financial year   34 903   82 313 

-  Payable two to three years after reporting date  -   - 
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11. NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   

Net deficit per statement of financial performance  (20 812 881) (9 725 001) 

Adjustments for:   

-  Depreciation   

•  Property, plant and equipment   16 902 382   14 820 838  

•  Intangible assets    2 571   2 734  

•  Investment property   4 438 744   3 690 378  

-  Bad debts  6 079 009   5 900 736

-  Profit on disposal of fixed assets    

•  Property, plant and equipment  47 330   815 704

•  Investment property  8 234   -

   6 665 388   15 505 388 

-  (Increase)/decrease in receivables   (5 072 748)  8 352 536 

-  (Increase)/decrease in inventories   77 695  (18 293) 

-  Increase/(decrease) in deferred income    7 060   32 679  

-  Increase/(decrease) in conditional grants   69 223 205   33 590 618 

-  Increase/(decrease) in payables   10 223 867  (147 310) 

Net cash inflow from operating activities    81 124 466   57 315 620  

    

The Authority does not have any overdraft or other borrowing facilities.   

    

12. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS   

Contracted for    8 006 571   10 200 254  

   

   8 006 571   10 200 254 

Expenditure authorised by the Board in respect of capital projects such 

as roads, hides, picnic sites, viewing decks, signage, water reticulation, 

and buildings, for the next three year cycle is:     466 194 606   353 278 928 
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13. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES   

Land claims   

A number of land claims have been settled on land controlled by the Authority 

in respect of which co-management agreements have been concluded. The 

agreements do not permit occupation or use of Park assets and there are no 

recurring fixed financial obligations for iSimangaliso. 

Construction contract 

Sanyati, a construction company contracted to iSimangaliso is being liquidated. 

iSimangaliso has taken the view that it will not recover any money due to it by 

Sanyati and has written these amounts off over the last two years. However the

amount due to Sanyati is still reflected as a liability consistent with conservatism.  - 6 079 076 
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGERS’ REMUNERATION

Non-executive directors

Fees    87 207   77 183 

Executive directors    

Chief Executive Officer  

Salary    1 360 208   1 269 839  

Allowances    86 314   120 814 

Medical Aid   33 908   29 148 

Total 12 months (12 months)    1 480 430   1 419 801  

 

Senior Managers 

Chief Financial Officer   

Salary    1 070 753   991 982 

Allowances    137 996   137 996 

Medical Aid    14 332   13 088 

Total 12 months (12 months)   1 223 081   1 143 066 

 

The posts of Chief Financial Officer and Commercial Director were merged 

from February 2007    

Parks Operations Director 

Salary    860 548   798 330 

Allowances    142 378   140 656 

Medical Aid    52 148   47 064 

Total 12 months (12 months)    1 055 074   986 050 

 

Research and Policy Senior Manager    

Salary   746 376   695 416 

Allowances   69 694   67 973 

Total 12 months (12 months)   816 070   763 389 
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGERS’ REMUNERATION (cont.)

Finance Senior Manager   

Salary    621 312   577 290 

Allowances    51 600   51 600 

Total 12 months (12 months)   672 912   628 890 

 

Total Directors’ Remuneration    1 567 637   1 496 984 

Total Senior Managers’ Remuneration    3 767 137   3 521 394 

 

The Chief Executive Officer and senior management are paid on a total-cost-to-

company basis. The total package has been disaggregated for purposes of 

Treasury Regulation 28.1.4.

15. RELATED-PARTY DISCLOSURES   

Identity of related parties    

The Authority’s parent department is the Department of Environmental Affairs (DEA). 

The Authority receives an annual allocation from DEA, which it uses to finance its 

operations. From time to time it also receives additional grants from the expanded 

public works programme managed by DEA.  

    

Material related-party balances and transactions    

Transfers from related party    126 972 493   98 424 327  

 

Key management-related activities   

No loans or payments were made to management of DEA during the year, nor were 

any material transactions entered into with them.
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16. BUDGET INFORMATION

The budget (which is the same period as these financial statements) is approved 

on a quasi-cash basis using a nature-of-expense classification. The financial 

statements are prepared on the accrual basis, also using a nature-of-expense 

classification. The following reconciliation summarises the differences between the 

actual financial performance for the year and the budget. 

Reconciliation between budget and statement of financial performance 

Net deficit per the statement of financial performance  (20 812 881) (9 725 001)

Adverse/(favourable) variances of actual from budget:  

Income:

-  Grant revenue  15 499 801  (4 947 184)

-  Administration fees  (119 883) (2 120 047)

-  Park revenue  (1 217 839) (2 321 833)

-  Other  (754 181)  428 161

Expenses:

-  Chemicals and equipment  2 482 711   2 158 139

-  Depreciation and amortisation  417 697   4 263 670

-  Personnel costs  (2 704 090) (4 539 670)

-  Repairs and maintenance  (11 931 691) (11 921 336)

-  Management and administration  725 436   1 576 387

-  Professional fees  (3 568 438)  2 214 214

-  Subcontractors   (17 724 379)  3 967 344

-  Training  (2 463 011) (2 413 434)

-  Other  8 501 552   5 431 447

  (12 856 314) (8 224 143)

Differences in the bases of accounting:   

Capital expenditure treated on a cash basis in budget  (51 746 000) (39 665 000)

Grants received treated on a cash basis in budget   85 415 195   57 614 144 

   33 669 195   17 949 144 

Net surplus/(deficit) per approved budget   -  -
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  6 079 009 5 900 736 

17. HERITAGE ASSETS   

The iSimangaliso Wetland Park is 358 534 hectares in extent. The five major 

ecosystems found in iSimangaliso provide habitat for a significant diversity of African 

biota. These ecosystems are:    

-  The marine ecosystem, characterised by a warm sea, the southernmost extension 

of coral reefs in Africa, submarine canyons and long sandy beaches

-  The coastal dune system, consisting of linear dunes up to 180m in height, sub-

tropical forests, grassy plains and wetlands  

-  Lake systems, consisting of two estuarine-linked lakes (St Lucia and Kosi) and four 

large freshwater lakes   

-  The uMkhuze and iMfolozi swamps, with swamp forest, extensive reed and 

papyrus wetlands   

-  The inland western shores, with ancient shoreline terraces and dry savannah 

woodland        

 

This diversity provides important habitats for a large number of species, including 

those that are rare, threatened or endemic. The species’ lists for iSimangaliso are 

the most extensive in the region and population sizes of most species are viable. Of 

the over 6 500 plant and animal species known to occur in the Park, populations 

of those with conservation importance include 11 species that are endemic to the 

Park, 56 species endemic to KwaZulu-Natal, and 108 species endemic to South 

Africa. Four hundred and sixty seven species are listed as threatened in South Africa. 

In the past, little was known about the status and viability of many rare, threatened 

and endemic species in the Park, particularly the lower vertebrate and invertebrate 

species. But studies on a number of these species are currently underway.   

 

The Park is situated on the southernmost extremity of the Mozambique coastal 

plain and, as a result, hosts numerous species not found elsewhere in South Africa.  

This adds to the value and importance of this unique area from a South African 

species conservation perspective. The presence of some of these species north of 

our borders, cannot detract from the importance of conserving the South African 

populations, as very little information is generally available on their conservation 

status and distribution in other parts of southern and central Africa. iSimangaliso 

is clearly a critical habitat for a range of species from Africa’s marine, wetland and 

savannah environments.   

   

iSimangaliso also has four Ramsar sites*, an accreditation that recognises the 

ecological significance of those sites, their function as wetlands and their importance 

as resources of economic, cultural, scientific and recreational value. The sites are:  

 

- St Lucia Lake System: on the coast, between the uMfolozi Swamps from south of 

the uMfolozi River to the uMkhuze River in the north. The site was designated on  

2 October 1986 (Ramsar Site # 345)   

- Turtle Beaches/Coral Reefs of Tongaland: on the coast, stretching from just south 

of Cape Vidal northwards to the border of Mozambique. The site was designated 

on 2 October 1986 (Ramsar Site # 344)   

- Kosi Bay Lake System: on the coast south of Mozambique on the Maputaland 

Coastal Plain. The site was designated on 28 June 1991 (Ramsar Site #527)

- Lake Sibaya: on the coast, north of Cape Vidal and south of Sodwana Bay. The 

site was designated on 28 June 1991 (Ramsar Site # 528)  

 

The remarkable ecological diversity and significance of iSimangaliso is therefore 

unique, not only on the African continent, but also from a global perspective. For 

example, available information suggests that no other locality in the world harbours 

such a wide range of wetland types in a single protected area. Of the 32 marine/

coastal and inland natural wetland forms recognised by the Ramsar Convention, no 

fewer than 23 of these forms occur within the Park.   

   

The value of the Heritage Assets cannot be reliably measured as there is no active 

market for these.   

     

*A Ramsar site is a wetland protected under the 1971 Ramsar Convention on 

Wetlands of International Importance.

    

18. BAD DEBTS WRITTEN OFF   

Sanyati, a construction company contracted to iSimangaliso, is being liquidated. 

Sanyati was indebted to iSimangaliso in the amount of R11 979 745. The Authority 

has taken the conservative view, based on information available regarding the 

progress of the liquidation, that the amount owed by Sanyati will not be recovered. 

As at 31 March 2014 the remaining balance was written off. The Authority will 

continue to pursue the receipt of a liquidation dividend.
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DETAILED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

      Local    

       economic    

  Core  Park Land development Research and   

  operations Infrastructure establishment care programmes monitoring Total 2012/13 

  R R R R R R R R

Income:         

Grants 23 490 000  11 272 751  162 894  21 532 495  2 701 712  12 396 151  71 556 003  63 595 040  

Interest received 668 893  -  -  -  5 968  -  674 861  464 707  

-  From banks 668 893  -  -  -  5 968  -  674 861  464 707 

Park revenue 11 901 839  - - - - - 11 901 839  10 994 833 

Penalties 20 000  - - - - - 20 000  25 000  

Sundry revenue 2 049 202  -  -  -  -  -  2 049 202  4 231 179  

-  Admin fees recovered from programmes 788 883 - - - - - 788 883 2 755 047

-  Management fees recovered from programmes 777 331 - - - - - 777 331 853 134

-  Discounts received 6 429 - - - - - 6 429 5 566

-  Bid and tender fees 2 500 - - - - - 2 500 568 351

-  Other 474 060 - - - - - 474 060 49 080

Total income 38 129 935  11 272 751  162 894  21 532 495  2 707 680  12 396 151  86 201 906  79 310 760  
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      Local    

       economic    

  Core  Park Land development Research and   

  operations Infrastructure establishment care programmes monitoring Total 2012/13 

  R R R R R R R R

Expenditure 68 045 912  7 275 684  877  16 635 068  2 638 946  12 418 301  107 014 787  89 035 761   

Advertising 114 375  - - - - - 114 375  51 730  

Audit fees - external 1 164 978  - - - - - 1 164 978  852 142  

Audit fees - internal 261 945  - - - - - 261 945  295 129 

Bad debts 6 079 009  - - - - - 6 079 009  5 900 736 

Bank charges 99 703  7 497  877  5 732  2 880  2 869  119 558  102 381  

Board expenses 182 354  - - - - - 182 354  163 064 

Co-management agreement payments 861 864  - - - - - 861 864  772 298  

Chemicals and equipment - 3 549 479  -  669 701  427 163  4 368  4 650 711  2 158 139 

Computer consumables 10 133  - - - - - 10 133  7 894  

Conference expenses 4 033  - - - - - 4 033  26 079 

Courier and postage 15 574  - - - - - 15 574  13 090  

Depreciation:  

-  Property, plant and equipment 16 902 382  - - - - - 16 902 382  14 820 838  

-  Intangible assets 2 571  - - - - - 2 571  2 734  

-  Investment property 4 438 744  - - - - - 4 438 744  3 690 378  

Discounts allowed 3 320  - - - - - 3 320  10 500  

Donations 11 000  - - - - - 11 000  14 500  

Electricity 1 902 530  - - - - - 1 902 530  1 875 755  

Environmental enforcement and rehabilitation -  - - - - - -  (6 696)

Game purchases and management 7 262  - - - - - 7 262  - 

Gate operating costs 4 406 092  - - - - - 4 406 092  3 953 632  

Insurance 112 317  - - - - - 112 317  111 507  

Legal fees 2 425 579  - - - - - 2 425 579  2 274 229  

Licences 21 337  - - - - - 21 337  8 057   

Loss/(profit) on disposal of assets:   

-  Property, plant and equipment 47 330  - - - - - 47 330  815 704  

-  Investment property 8 234  - - - - - 8 234  -

Management and administration -  206 250  -  2 564 554  159 124  403 709  3 333 636  4 036 915  

Marketing 439 650  -  -  -  -  - 439 650 491 654 
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      Local    

       economic    

  Core  Park Land development Research and   

  operations Infrastructure establishment care programmes monitoring Total 2012/13 

  R R R R R R R R

Personnel costs:        

-  Salaries, wages and secondments 14 701 625  - - - - - 14 701 625  12 940 386  

-  Less: charged to programmes (1 709 715) - - - - - (1 709 715) (3 766 085)

Printing and stationery 254 387  - - - - - 254 387  246 757  

Professional fees 2 190 299  534 009  -  -  266 064  8 917 990  11 908 362  10 704 532  

Rental of equipment 98 775  - - - - - 98 775  105 495  

Repairs and maintenance 5 992 309  -  -  -  -  -  5 992 309  6 073 356  

Security 6 012 716  - - - - - 6 012 716  2 071 687  

Staff teas, refreshments and cleaning 62 815  - - - - - 62 815  57 976  

Subcontractors - 2 978 450  - 13 123 761  1 783 715  1 754 696  19 640 621  15 767 344  

Subscriptions 18 208  - - - - - 18 208  10 999  

Telephone, telefax and internet 423 735  - - - - - 423 735  331 587  

Training -  -  -  271 320  -  1 334 669  1 605 989  1 450 374  

Travelling expenses 381 572  - - - - - 381 572  488 882  

Workshops and meetings 96 869  - - - - - 96 869  110 083  

          

Net deficit for period (29 915 977) 3 997 068  162 017  4 897 427  68 734  (22 150) (20 812 881) (9 725 001) 
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Fish preparation, Lake St Lucia





“We were made to enjoy music, to enjoy beautiful sunsets, 
to enjoy looking at the billows of the sea 
and to be thrilled with a rose that is bedecked with dew… 
Human beings are actually created for the transcendent, 
for the sublime, for the beautiful, for the truthful... 
and all of us are given the task of trying to make this world 
a little more hospitable to these beautiful things.”

DESMOND TUTU
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